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PAINTINGS OF OMAN

LA bt The Sultanate of Oman is a nation rich in cultural, historical
and natural splendour, Over the years, it has been & living
inspiration for several artists and painters.

Featured in the following pages are various aspects of Oman
captured by the brush of Rashmi Dauria. From cultural icons
and people to authentic slices of daily life in Oman, each of
her subjects is alive with vivid colour and energy.

Rashimi Dauria is a graduate from the prestigious Sir J.J
Institute of Applied Art in Mumbai, India. She is & member of
the Muscat Art Group, the Dubal International Art Society and
the Bombay Art Society.

OUR PHILOSOPHY

Since inception, Bank Dhofar with its philosophy of “Customer First”, has
developed a reputation for commitment, foresight and remarkable, yet solid,
growth that has helped raise industry standards. Bank Dhofar believes in, and
is committed to, maintaining relationships by offering a host of personalised
services to local and international retail and corporate clients.

Bank Dhofar is committed to new ideas, innovations, revision and fine-tuning of
existing practices. The Bank continues to offer innovative high quality products
and implement creative strategies ahead of market trends to achieve sustained
growth and secure increased local and international market shares.

Bank Dhofar aims to be one of the most efficient banks in Gman, with reliability
as its foundation for service based on progressive technolegy, and delivered by
professional, competent and approachablestaff. The Bank consistently demonstrates
good faith and integrity in its dealings with all its stakeholders, providing acceptable
i returns to shareholders whilst maintaining a strong financial base.

In short, Bank Dhofar aspires to develop into Oman’s foremost international
financial institution.

BANK DHOFAR SAOG
Corporate Office

Muftrah Business District,

P.0. Box 1507, Postal Code 112,
Ruwi, Sultanate of Oman

Tel: 24780466

Fax; 24702865

Website: www.bankdhofar.com
E-mail: info@hankdhofar.com

Auditors
Deloitte & Touche (M.E)}
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Board of Director’s Report

‘ Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Bank Dhofar S.A.0.G., | am
pleased to present 1o you the Bank's Financial Statements and the
Auditor's Repart for the financial year ended 31 December 2006.

A growth of 41.77% the total
assets of bank Increased to RO 694.79
million as compared to RO 618.22

| million in 2005, representing a

| growth of 12.39%.

Loans and advances to customers grew
by RO 77.88 million to RO 548.82 million,
an increase of 16.54%.

The customers’ deposits grew by 9.96%
to RO 497.14 million from RO 452.13
million at the end of 2005.

The Bank’s Financial Performance in 2006

The year 2006 was a blessed year for growth of the Bank. In 2006
some of the financial indicators of the bank recordsd good growth,

The total assets of the Bank increased to RO 634. 79 million as compared
to RO 618.22 million in 2005, representing a growth of 12.39%. Loans
and advances to customers grew by RO 77.88 million to RO 548.82
million an increase of 16.54%. The customers’ deposits grew by 9.96
% 1o RO 497.14 million from RO 452,13 million at the end of 2005.
During the 1st quarter of 2006 the Bank signed a mid-term syndicated
[oan of USD 100 million.

The total shareholders’ equity increased to RO 93.28 million in 2006

as compared with RO 79.41 million at the end of 2005, a growth of
< 17.47% over the last year. The net assets per share increased to RO
.1_ 0.202 as compared fo RO 0.189 per share at the end of year 2005,
' representing an increase of 6.68%.

The Bank achieved a net profit of RO 20.13 million during the year
ending 31 December 2006 compared with RO 14.20 million in 2005,
a growth of 41.77%. The total operating income increased by 16.48%
to RO 34.92 million as compared to RO 29.98 million in 2005. The total
operating expenses increased by 3.34% in 2006 to RO 13.61 millian
from RO 13.17 million in 2005. The Bank's operating efficiency improved
in 2006 as the ratio of total operating expenses to total operating income
decreased to 38,99 % as compared to 43.93% in 2005. In 2005 the
Bank made additional provisions of RO 2.65 million for impaired loans

and recovered RO 3.52 million from the loans impairment provisions.

As a result of the increase in the net profit of the Bank, the earning
per share reached RO 0.045 at the end of 2006 as compared with
RO 0.034 at the end of 2005, representing an increase of 32,35%.

Code of Corporate Governance

During 2006 the Bank has fully complied with all directives of the Code
of Corporate Governance issued by the Capital Market Authority.

Also during the vear the Board of Directors reviewed, approved or
amended the following palicies:

» Approved the policy of risk classification and provisioning;

b Approved the policy of waiver / write off in respect of non-performing
loans (NPLs});

» Approved the policy of loan review mechanism;

b Approved the concept of regional organisational chart dividing the
branches into regions;

b Approved amendment to Matrix of authorities relating fo internal
audit in Bank's authorities manual;

b Approved revision of the Charter of the Audit Committee

Also in compliance with article (101} of the Commercial Companies
Law No. 4/1974 and its amendments, the Board of Directors would like
to disclose that the total amount received in 20086 as sitting fees was
RO 97,300 and the proposed remuneration for the year is RO 102,700,

Human Resources Strategic Committee

During 2006 the Board of Diractors appointed Booz Allen Hamilton as
Consultant to develop human resources, to study ways to enhance
efficiency of various banking activities, to design a new organisational
chart, and to make a strategic plan to achieve the required growth.

Proposed Dividends

The Board reviewed the Bank’s policy on dividends distribution which is
based on maintaining a fine balance between retaining and distributing
the annual profit. The Bank retains part of the annual profit in the form
of reserves and retained earnings to build a solid capital base, taking
into consideration the future growth of the Bank, the possible economic
and financial markets fluctuations, the requirements of the capital
adequacy ratio and the various risks involved.
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The Board of Directors recommends RO 6.92 million in cash dividends,
which represents 15% of the share capital of the Bank and another
RO 6.92 million bonus shares, also representing 15% of the share
capital, by Issuing 69.24 million shares with a par value RO 0,100
per share. The Bank will retain RO 1.472 million lo be transferred to
subordinated bonds reserve, amounting to 20% of the subordinated
bonds maturing in 2008.

Acknowledgment

The Chairman and the Board of Directors of the Bank would like to
thank our valuahle customers for their patronage and confidence they
have reposed in the Bank. | thank the shareholders for your confinuous
support and the Bank's staff and management for better performance
in 2006,

The Board of Directors also wishes to thank the Ceniral Bank of Oman
for Its valuable guidance to the local banking sector,

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express our
most sincere gratitude to His Majesty Sultan Qaboos Bin Said for his
wise leadership and generous support ta the private sector,
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Chairman
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Deloitte.

Deloitte & Touche (M.E.)
Muscat International Centre
Ground Floor

Location: MBD Area

P.O. Box 258, Ruwi

Postal Code 112

Sultanate of Oman

Tel: +968 24817775
Tel: +968 24815896
Fax: +968 24815581
www.deloitte.com

Report of factual findings in connection with Corporate Governance Report
of Bank Dhofar SAOG (“the Bank”) and application of the corporate governance
practices in accordance with CMA Code of Corporate Governance

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BANK DHOFAR SAOG

We have performed the procedures prescribed in Capital Market Authority (CMA) Circular

No. 16/2003 dated 29 Decemher 2003 with respect to the corporate governance report of

Bank Dhofar SA0G for the year ended 31 December 2006 and application of the corporate governance practices in accordance with CMA code of
corporate governance issued under Circular No, 11/2002 dated 3 June 2002 and its amendments. Our engagement was undertaken in accordance
with the International Standards on Auditing applicable to agreed-upon procedures engagements. The procedures were performed solely to assist
you in evaluating the Bank's compliance with the code as issued by the CMA.

We report our findings as below:

We found the Bank's corporate governance report reflects its application of the provisions of the code and is free from any material
misrepresentation.

Because the above procedures do not constitute either an audit or a review made in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we
do not express any assurance on the corporate governance report. Had we performed additional procedures or had we performed an audit or
review of this report in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, other matters might have come 1o our attention that would have
been reported to you.

This report is solely for the purpose set forth in the first paragraph of this report and for your information and is not to be used for any other purpose. This report
. relates only to the Board of Directors corporate governance report included in ts annual report for the year ended

| 31 December 2006 and does not extend to any financial statements of Bank Dhofar SAOG, taken as a whole.

Deloitte & Touche (M.E.)
Muscat, Sultanate of Oman
27 February 2007

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Audit. Tax . Consulting . Financial Advisory.

Report on Corporate Governance

Part One

1 - Corporate Governance Philosophy:

The Board of the Bank bears the principal responsibility of fashioning the
corporate governance code as appropriate to the Bank within the broad
framework enunciated by the Central Bank of Oman and the Capital Market
Authority. It is also charged with the responsibllity of subjecting the code to
periodic review to keep it refurbished and contemporary.

Decision-making within the Bank has been broadly divided into two levels.
The Board of Directors at the apex level, as trustees of the shareholders, bear
the responsibility of strategic supervision of the Bank, apart from fulfilling
statutory obligations. Some of the major responsibilities of the Board, namely
audit, senior management succession, legal and regulatory compliance are
discharged through four sub-committess, viz, the Executive Committee, the
Audit Committee, the Risk Committee and the Human Resources Strategic
Committee. These sub-committees which operate under Board approved
charters have been mesting regularly and have contributed significantly fo
the effective functioning of the code of corporate governance. The charters of
these committees meet with all the requirements as laid down in the Code of
Corparate Governance enunciated by the Central Bank of Oman and the Capital
Market Authority of Oman. In addition, the Board carries the responsibility of
approving the strategic plans of the Bank. The exscutive management of the
Bank comprises the Senior Managers headed by the Chief Fxecutive.

Through this two-tiered interlinked govemance process, a wholesome balance
has been created between the need for focus and executive freedom, and the
need for supervision, control, and checks and balances.

The formal Code of Corporate Governance prescribes the highest ethical
standards in the conduct of the Bank’s business. The Senior Members of the
Bank are fully cognisant of their responsibilities in sefting personal examples so
that the code is internalised within the Bank and becomes part of its culture,
In the ultimate analysis, there can be no substitute for the enlightened self-
regulation that is expected of avery member of the Bank.

2 - The Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has the full authority to perform all acts required for
managing the Bank, protecting and growing the shareholders’ interests
Pursuantto its abjectives. Such authority shall not be limited o restricted except

as provided by the law, the Articles of Association or resolutions of the General
Meetings.

The responsibilities and functions of the Board include the following:

b Charting the overall strategic direction of the Bank, reviewing and approving
the business, and strategic plan.

¥ Monitoring the Bank's performance and evaluating whether the business is
properly managed in accordance with the Bank’s set plans,

b Approving the Interim and annual financial statements and providing
accurate information at the right time to the shareholders, in accordance
with the instructions of the Capital Market Authority,

b Forming various Board sub-committees, approving thelr charters and

reviewing the functions of these committees.

. e i

b Reviewing all audit reports submitted by internal and external auditors and
statutory agencies.

b Ensuring that the Bank conducts its operations in an ethical and transparent
manner,

b Assessing and approving the proper delegation of authorities to executive
management.

b Evaluating the functions and the performance of the CEO and other key
employess,

Size and Terms

The Board consists of twelve (12) non-executive directors who are elscted hy
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The term of office of the Board
of Directors is three years and each Director can be re-elected for a similar
period. The term of the current Board expires in March 2007.
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Report on Corporate Governance (continued)

Composition and Selection

Members of the Board of Direclors are elected from among the Bank's
shareholders or non-shareholders provided that a shareholder candidate owns
no Iess than 50,000 shares of the Bank. The majority of members of the Board
of Directors shall be non-executive Directors.

A minimum of ane-third of the Board members shall be independent Directors,
none of their immediate relatives having held a senior pesition in the Bank for
the last two years, who shall have no relation with the Bank that could result
in financial transactions other than contracts and transactions entered through
open tendering or done in the ordinary course of business,

The election process Is through direct secret ballot whereby each shareholder
shall have a number of votes eguivalent to the number of shares he / she
holds. Every sharehalder shall have the right to vote for one candidate or more
provided the total number of votes In the voting form is equivalent to the number
of shares he / she holds.

At present all the Directors of the Board are non-executive and are independent

T —

within the scope of the definitions laid down in the Code of Corporate Governance
by the Capital Market Authority.

Board Committees
The Board has the following four Board Committees, whose objectives, powers

and procedures are govemed by the terms of reference of the respective
Committees as enshrined in their Charters, approved by the Board:

- Executive Committee

- Audit Committee

- Risk Committee

- Human Resources Strategic Committes

- Special Committee for selection of new senior managemeant team.

Additional committees may be established from time to Uime based on business
needs. Each committee has access to the Information and resources it requires,
including direct access to staff and consultants, The Board has selected the
committee members based on their professional backgrounds, skills and other
qualities they bring to the committees.

Part Two

1. Members of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors of Bank Dhofar (SAOG) consists of the following:

S.No. Name of Director

1 Eng.Abdul Hafidh Salim Rajab Al Aujaili
2 Sheikh Salem Mubarak Al Shanfari
3 HE Ahmed Abdullah Sulaiman Mogaibel
4 Shelkh Salem Oufait Al Shanfari

5  Mr Saleh Nasser Al Habsy

6 Mr Abdul Aziz Ali Al Shanfari

7 Sheikh Hamoud Mustahail Ahmed Al Mashani
8  Mr. Mohammed Yousuf Alawi Al Ibrahim

9 M Ali Ahmed Al Mashani _

10 Eng. Saeed Salim Al Shanfari

11 Mr. Ahmed Said Mohammed Al Mahrezi

12 Mr. Saleh Nasser Juma Al Araimi

The Board of Directors held 10 meetings during 2006 as follows:
- 29 January
- 28 February
- 8 April
- 30 May
-3 July

Chairman Non-exacutive
Vice Chairman Non-executive
Member Non-executive
Member Non-executive
Member Non-executive
Member Non-executive
Member Non-executive
Member Non-executive
Member Non-executive
Member Non-executive
Member Non-executive

Member Non-executive

Basis of Membership ntr;;xiﬁ:;h:;el y
Independent Non-shareholder Director 1
Independent Shareholder Director 5
Independent Non-shareholder Directar 3
Independent Non-shareholder Director 1
Independent Non-shareholder Director
Independent Shareholder Director 1
Independent Sharehoider Dirsctor -
Independent Shareholder Director 2
Independent Non-sharegholder Director 2
Independent Sharehalder Director 2
Independent Non-shareholder Director 2
Independenl Non-shareholder Director 2
- 27 July
- 17 August
- 19 October
- 21 November

- 24 December

T | N,
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No.of Directors' Benefits
s.No. Name of Director Capacity of Membership Meetings (Amountin R0)
' Aienced Fees Paid RBS:E;S;?}EQ”
1 Eng. Abdul Hafidh Salim Rajab Al Aujail In Personal Capacity 10 10,000 8,562
2 Shelkh Salem Mubarek Al Shanfar iy d%gﬂgr'ﬂ“sggga(téﬂ‘gge"ekj“mem 6 5,200 8,558
3 HEAhmed Abdullah Sulaiman Megaibel In Personal Capacity 9 10,000 8,558
4 Shelkh Salem Qufait Al Shanfari In Personal Capacity 8 3,400 8,558
5 Mr Saleh Nasser Al Habsy In Personal Capacity 10 10,000 8,558
6 Mr Abdul Aziz Al Al Shanfarl Representative of Ofsat Limited Co, LLC 8 8,000 8,558
7 Sheikh Hamoud Mustahail Anmed Al Mashani Representative of Qais Omani Est. 4 3,200 8,558
8  Mr. Mohammed Yousuf Al lbrahim Representative of Dolphin International LLC 9 9,800 8,558
9 Mr Al Ahmed Al Mashani In Pergonal Capacity 10 9,200 8,558
10 Eng. Saeed Salim Al Shanfari Representative of Dhofar Cattle Feed (SAOG) 8 10,000 8,558
11 Mr. Ahmed Said Mohammed Al Mahrez In Personal Capacity 6 9,700 8,558
12 Mr Salen Nasser Jura Al Araimi In Personal Capacity 8 8,800 8,558
Total 97,300 102,700

2. Executive Committee

The Committee consists of five members with proper experience, skills and
Initiative. The objective of the Execuitive Committee is to discharge responsinilities
on behalf of the Board in deciding on specific policy matters demanding indepth
study and analysis, delibsration and interactive consideration and decigions on
micro matlers of business beyond the powers delegated 1o the management,
but considered less impartant to receive the full Board's attention and time.

The Board members of the Executive Committee are:

éﬁjlu- Name of Director Designation "“‘fﬁem"us
e
2 Mr Abdul Aziz Ali Al Shanfari  Vice Chairman 8
3 Mr Saleh Nasser Al Hahsy Member 8
4 Mr. Ali Ahmed Al Mashan! Member 8
5 ﬂrMAahhTei(iI Said Mehammed Mesitier 7

The Executive Committes held 8 meetings during 2008,

3. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was formed in 2001 by the Board of Directors with the
following main ebjectives and responsibilities:

P Tofocus the atiention of the Board and top management of the Bank on the
importance of strong financial reporting and risk management,

Tdentidy: Looking 4o fhe past.. Three men appreciate
their Omani heritage.
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b To maonitor the adeguacy of internal confrols in the Bank and to take
appropriate steps where required.

> To monitor the Bank's compliance with [egal and regulatory provisions, its
articles of association, charter, by-laws and rules established by the Board
of Directors.

b Toidentily the risk areas of the Bank's operations to be covered in the scope
of the Internal and external audits during the year.

b To monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit functien and approve the audit
plan as well as the availability of adequate resources (personnel and tools).

P To recommend the appointment / change of the external auditors and
determine and review their terms of engagement,

b To hear the views of the external auditors before forwarding the annual
financial statements to the Board for approval,

» Toreportand bring to the attention of the Board any matters of concemn with
regard to the foregeing and any material accounting or auditing concems
Identified as a result of the external or internal audits, or examination by
supervisory authorities.

The Members of the Audit Committee are:

- e : No. of Meetings
S. No. Name of Director Designation Attended
1 HE Ahmed Abdullah Chairman of the 5
Sulaiman Mogaibel Committee
Sheikh Hamoud Mustahail
2 Ahmed Al Mashani Member z
Sheikh Salem Qufait
3 Al Shanfari Meniber 1
Mr. Mohammed Yousuf
4 Al Ibrahim Member 3]

The Audit Committee held 8 meetings in 2008.

Report on Corporate Governance (continued)

4. Risk Committee of the Board of Directors:

The Risk Committee of the Board of Directors was formed in October 2004 by
the Board of Directorg with the following main objectives and responsibllities:

The Objective of the Risk Commitiee of the Board of Directors is to focus on
issues relating to Risk Management policies and procedures on a Bank-wide
basis by arriving at a judicious policy decision collectively.

Roles and Responsibilities:

b To understand the risks undertaken by the Bank and ensure that they are
appropriately managed.

b To develop risk palicies, limits and procedures after assessment of the
Bank's risk bearing capacity.

b Toidentify, monitor and measure the overall risk profile of the Bank.

b To verify models used for pricing complex products and transfer pricing.

P To review the risk models as development takes place in the markets and
also identify new risks.

¥ To ensure that the risk policies developed clearfy spell out the quantitative
prudential limits on various segments of Bank’s operations.

P To build stress scenarios to measure the impact of unusual market
conditions and monitor variance between the actual volatility in portfallo
values and those predicted by the risk measures.

» To monitor compliance with various risk parameters by business lines.
P Tohold the line management accountable for the risks under their canirol,

» To oversee and ensure the implementation of Central Bank of Oman's
guidelines on risk management systems in Banks,

The members of the Risk Committee are;

No. of Meetings
5. No. Name of Director Designation Attended

1 Mr. Saleh Nasser Juma Chairman of the 4

Al Aralmi Committee

Eng. Saeed Salim
2 Shanfari Mermber :

Shelkh Salem Mubarak
3 AlShanfar Member 4

The Risk Committee held 4 meetings in 2006.

5. Human Resources Strategic Committee of the
Board of Directors:

The Human Resources Strategic Committes of the Board of Direciors was
formed In March 2006 by the Board of Directors to ensure that the overall
human resources developments at Bank level are, as par the strategic direction
of the Bank.

At a strategic level, the Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring

the following:

b Ensure manpower plans take into account, the strategic and specific
resources requirements at the Bank to achieve strategic plans.

> Review the Omanisation plans and ensure certain defined positions are
earmarked for prospective Omanis within a prescribed period of time.

b Review exit interviews and note any dismissals or resignations for middie
management and top management,

b Review the recruitment policy adopted by the Human Resources
Department,

b Review the qualifications and experience of specific candidates for the
positions at the top management levels,

P Review and monitor compensation and reward policy and procedures.

P Review and monitor training and development policy and process.

The members of the Human Resources Committee are:

8l : No. of
0. Name of Director Designation Meetings
_ Aitended
| Ir. Ahmed Said Mohammed Chairman of 5
Al Mahrazi the Committee
Ivir. Mohammed Yousuf Al Ibrahim Member 5
3 Eng. Saeed Salim Al Shanfari Member 5

The Humen Resources Strategic Committee held 5 meetings in 2006,

6. Special Committee for selection of new
senior management team.

This Committee was formed by the Board of Directors to select the new senior
management team,

The members of the this Committae are:

No. of
Name of Director Designation Meetings
i Attended
I Ere A ] o Gnalrman of
& ng. Abdul Hafidh Salim Rajab Al Aujall ihe: gl i 4
”2 HE Ahmed Abdullah Sulaiman Mogaibel Memhber 4
3 Mr. Saleh Nasser Juma Al Araimi Member 4
A Mr. Ahmed Sald Mohammed Al Mahrazi Member 2
5 Mr. Saleh Nasser Al Habsy Member 3
6 Eng. Saeed Salim Al Shanfari Member 4

The Human Resources Strategic Committee held 4 megtings in 2008,
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/. Directors’ Remuneration and Executives Pay

As all members of the Board are Non-execulive Directors, no fixed salary or
performance-linked incentives are appiicable, The Non-executive Directors
are paid an annual remuneration and sitting fees for attending the Board /
Committee mestings. Directors' proposed remuneration and sitting fees paid
during 2006 are as follows:

Proposed Sitting Total
Remuneration Fees Paid
RO'000 RO‘000 RO'000
Chalrman of the Board 86 10.0 18.6
Board Members 94.1 87.3 181.4
Total 102.7 97.3 200.0

The Bank's top five executives, namely the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief
Executive, General Manager — Support Services, Deputy Genaral Manager-Retail
Banking, and Deputy General Manager — Risk Management have received the
following in 2006:

/- Performance
Salaries Total
: Bonus & Others S
RO'000 RO‘000 RO'000
Top five Executives 634 385 1,019

8. Compliance with Regulatory Requirements

The Bank adhered to and complied with all relevant regulatory requirements and
there were no penaltles or strictures imposed on the Bank in the last three years
for non-compliance with any statutory or regulatory authority requirements.

Also the Bank complied with all provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance
issued by the Capital Market Authority.

| Sevk: Impressions of a markef place.. One of the /itdle sates
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Report on Corporate Governance (continued)

9. Communication with Shareholders and Investors
The Bank publishes its quarterly interim financial statements and also hosts
these and other relevant information at its website W, bankdnofar.com. The
guarterly results are published in two lncal newspapers in Arabic and English.

These rasults can be ohtained by shareholders eitner from the Bank or Muscat *

Securities Market (MSM).

The management provides regular updates to the market on the Bark's
performance and new developments. The Management Discussion and Analysis
Report forms part of this annual report.

10. Market Price Data

a. Share Price Movements

The high / low share price information of the Bank during the financial year
ended 31 December 2006 compared with Muscat Securities Market Index Is

as follows:

2006 Bank Dhofar Share Price (RQ) MSM Index
Month High Low Closing Closing

January 0.49 0.400 0.468 5,499.180
February 0.478 0.430 0.465 5,317.720
March 0.470 0.395 0.410 5,335.410
April 0.410 0.350 0.350 5,068.920
May 0.365 0.780 0.340 4,924,710
June 0.365 0.320 0.355 4,836,100
July 0.361 0.320 0.345 4,748.820
August 0.366 0.340 0.357 5,037.700
September 0.363 0.346 0.335 5,446,050
October 0.386 0.345 0.375 5,778.220
Movember 0.378 0.352 0.355 5451110
December 0.355 0.367 5,581.570

0.378

b. Major Shareholders
The following are the major shareholders wha Own more than 5% of the
outstanding shares as at 31 December 2006

Shareholder % of Ownership
Dhofar International Development and Investment 30.06%
Company (SACG)

Civil Service Pension Fund 10.00%
Ministry of Defense Pension Fund 8.57%
Public Authority for Social Insurance 8.15%
Qais Omani Establishment LLG 6.46%
Malatan Trading and Contracting LLGC 6.39%

{1. Profile of the Statutory Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is an organisation of member firms devoted to
excellence in providing professional services and advice. We are focused on
client service through a global stralegy executed locally in nearly 140 countries.
With access to the deep intellectual capital of 135,000 people waorldwide, our
member firms, including their affiliates, deliver services in four professional
areas: audit, tax, consulting, and financial advisory.

Deloitte & Touche in the Middle East is the oldest and largest indigenous
professional services firm with more than 1,000 people serving businesses and
governments in 14 countries through 25 offices. The Oman Practice currently
has three Partners and over 30 professionals.

12. Other Matters

® During 2006 the bank has fully complied with all directives of the Code of
Corporate Governance issued by the Capital Market Authority.

Also during the year the Board of Directors reviewed, approved or amended the
following policies:
b Approved the policy of risk classification and provisioning;

b Approved the policy of waiver / write off in respect of non-performing loans

{NPLs};
b Approved the palicy of loan review mechanism;

b Approved the concept of regional organisational chart dividing the branches |

into regions,

b Approved amendment to Matrix of authorities relating to internal audit in

Bank's authorities manual;
b Approved revision of the Charter of the Audit Committee.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Report

Oman’s Economy and Outlook

Oman’s nominal GDP s estimated to grow to RO 13.8 hillion in 2008 from
RO 11,8 billion In the previous year, a growth of 16.8%. In real terms, the GDP is
estimated to grow by 6% in 2006, The economy has been enjoying a periad of
unprecedented growth over the last three years, thanks to high ol prices, which
hias strengthened the fiscal position. Government debt as a percentage of GDP
continues to decline and the easy liguidity condition is manifested in the growth
of money supply. Inflationary situation remains under control. International
rating agencies, Moody’s and Standard & Poor's have acknowledged the strang
public and external finance position and upgraded the soverelgn debt ratings.
The local stock market (MSM) also delivered & healthy return of 14.5% for
investors in 2006.

Economic prospects for 2007 are bright In the face of a stable oil market and
the sound domestic macro-economic policy environment. As per the fiscal
budget, real GDP Is projected to grow by 8% this year. The Sultanate's revenues
are projected at RO 4,490 million with key contribution from oil and gas sector.
The government is striving hard to reduce its dependence on oil revenues and
increasing its diversification efforts. Steps are being taken to privatise and
encourage foreign investor participation in large scale industrial projects. Othar
ey initiatives include promoting the couniry as a leading tourist destination in
_.’tﬁe region. This is an important step in creating ample employment opportunities
for the young Omani population. The budget highlights investments in

Infrastructure prajects such as roads, ports, housing, health and education,
apart from major investments in the core oil and gas sector. Retall consumption
will also get a hoost with a 15% hike in salaries of employees in the government
sector. The strong liquidity position supported by reasonable valuation levels of
the leading Omani companies should extend the ongoing rally in the local stock
market well inta 2007,

Review of Operations

Retail Banking

During 2006, Consumer Banking Division (CBD) has been restructured to meet
the competition and has continued its efforts in the area of enhancing and
developing value-added products and services. CBD focused on expansion and
diversification of distribution channels. This included relocation and renovation
of some branches, and launching of new products like Deposit and Bill Payment
Machines, enhancing of "Al-Heson" Cash Prize Saving Scheme. The AT
Network expanded by 6 more machines, including ATMs located in Al Maha
filling stations.

In September 2008, we launched Deposit and Bill Payment Machines
(D&BPM) to provide our customer specific banking services such as Cash
Deposit, Cheque Deposit and Bill Payment facilities, By December 2006, we
had 6 D&BPM operational and plan to increase them fo a minimum of 15 in
2007,

“Al-Heson" Cash Prize Saving Scheme was further enhanced to be in excess
of RO 1.2 million. As well as introducing different special prize draws for

® During 2006 the Board of Directors appointed Booz Allen Hamiltoh as
Consultant to develop human resources, o study ways to enhance efficiency
of various banking activities, to design a new organisational chart and o
make a strategic plan o achleve the required growth.

® The last Annual General Meeting (AGM) was held on 22 March 2006 and the '
last Fxtraordinary General Meeting (EGM) was held on 30 September 2003.
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Management Discussion and Analysis Report (continued)

Mother's day, Muscat Festival, Khareef Festival, Ramadan and special draws
for customers who maintain a quarterly minimum balance of RO 3,000 and
above, and the number of winners per annum has also been increased.

Consumer Banking Division continued focused branch network expansion
and opened a Branch in Shinas and more branches are set fo open in Falg)
Al Qaba'll, Al Khuwair Ministries Area, Quriyat, and Mabeela, These branches
are expected o be operational in the 1st quarter, 2007 and beginning of 2nd
quarter, 2007,

During 2007, we have more aggressive targets to come up with, more value-
added and improved innovative products, and services such as Housing Loans,
Personal Loans and plan to install more Deposit and Bill Payment Machines.

Marketing, Research and Product Development

Marketing and Research Division encompasses Product Development, Market
Hesearch and Communication aclivities like Advertising, Public Relations,
Direct Marketing, Fvenis, etc. In 2008 a number of projects and initiatives were
launched aimed at increasing Banks' profit and generating a higher customer
base.

Kay achievements during the year have been developing market responsive and
competitive products, and service lines that are at the forefront of the Gmani
financial Industry. In Its continuous endeavour 1o achieve 'Customer delight’,
the Division Introduced segmented new loan offerings, and re-launched the
"Al Heson” savings scheme.

A multimedia campaign was launched for Housing Loan, which generated a
tremendous response from customers .The Housing Loan scheme has been
well received, and ssveral applications are in the pipeline. The Cash Deposit
Machine has seen movement of several fransactions from the branch and has
found growing acceptance with the Bank's customers.

In 2006 the Al Heson Scheme continued to offer mare prizes on a weekly basis
as well as giving away the largest Jackpot prize of RO 200,000. Al Heson
continued to be the main product of the Bank, with intense media focus and
customer acquisition.

Participation in community activities has been the focus of Marketing Department,
with Muscat Festival and Khareef Festival at the forefront of such avenues of
advertisermnent. During these events, product offers and service atvertisements
helped to increase the customer base and bring awareness to what the bank
has to offer its prospective and current customers. Spansarships and Branch
support donations have also played a major role in being a tool for the branches
1o get customers, and advertise the banks products and services.

Many branches had undergone facelifts to improve the look and feel as well
as give a sense of professionalism and friendliness and ATM screens were
reworked 1o be more customers friendly as well as being utilised to advertise
our different products and offers.

The customer centric strategies and smart communication tactics used by
marketing department will be felt across all the touch points and Bank Ohofar

will certainly be the Bank of chaice in the coming years, with differentiated
customer service and a one- stop shop for all financial needs.

CARD SERVICES CENTRE

The Cards Centre concentrated on building upon the successes of 2005. It took 88

the [zad in Oman by embarking on a journey to be the first hank to offer a full
service 'Chip’ Card.

The project was approved by Management for implementation and outsourced |
to Arab financial services for chip card production and system cerlification. This I3

| P~

project is slated for launch in January 2007,

On the marketing side a limited edition Al Bahja Debit card was introduced

I

during the Muscat Festival capitalising on the logo of the festival

Keeping customer convenience in mind, the Credit Cards team fied up with
Oman Air to offer its Gold and Platinum cardholders "Free Access” to Oman Air
Lounge Facility.

A Credit Card promotion based on cards usage was launched during the Kharesf
Festival, which offered a free Oman Air weekend package for winners.

Wholesale Banking Group

The Wholesale Banking Group encompasses the Corporate Banking department,
Project Finance & Syndications department, Small & Medium-Enterprises
[SME) department and the departments of Remedial, Trade Finance Sales and
Corporate Advisory & Structured Finance.

The metamerphosis of the erstwhile Corporate Banking Division (including the:
Mid-sector unit) into the Wholesale Banking Group was a part of a planne]

strategy evolved by the Bank to focus on different segments of the Corporate®

market and provide the full range of Corporate services under a single
umbrella.

In the backdrop of a rapidly changing economic profile of the country, increased
competition in the secior and evolving banking regulatory regime, we belicvel
that Wholesale Banking Group will be vehicle of future growth for the Bank. It
our cherished objective to become the ‘preferred Bank' for corporate customers
in Oman and serve 25 a ‘one-stop-shop’ for &ll their banking requirements
and services. Towards this objective and to serve promptly and effectively our
existing as well as prospective customers, the Bank has streamlined inte
procedures and hired experienced professionals committed to deliver corpora
banking services of the highest standard. The Bank is also upgrading it
technological capabilities in various areas to effectively provide efficient delive
channels to ifs corporate customers.

In 20086, the lending arms of the Wholesale Banking Group have performed welt
under challenging circumstances. This was possible due fo a leveraging of fi
existing relationships fo Increase our exposure to the extent possible, growth I

il

new corporale lending, growth in the project finance / syndicated loan partfolio
and growth in overseas lending. Also we have been able fo lend to companies
with larger fund requirements in consortium with regional banks.

Corporate Banking department

_Tﬁé;-rpn'r&te Banking, department is staffed by qualified banking professionals
with vast and varied experience of Omani market. It provides the entire gamut of
ﬁ_ﬁria_i)rate banking products — bath funded and non-funded - to the customers
-and has been instrumental in developing the Bank into a ‘Relationship Bank' which
endsavours to build a long-lasting, mutually beneficial relationship with its clients.

Bvery customer or a group of customers is assigned a specialised Relationship
._Exﬂegﬁve. who is In constant touch with the customers o understand their
_-'[fgquiré'm_tenl_s and offer suitable services / products on most competitive terms.
' r.nphasis is on the development of tailor-made financial solutions that
re lited to the Individual needs of the custormers. The executive also liaises
iith other departments of the Bank to facilitate prompt delivery of the required
EIVices / products fo the satisfaction of the customer. The Bank considers

D
T

ﬁ!}@ﬁ_g&*r&!atinnship_ executives as vital links to its esteemed customers,

Project Finance & Syndications department
ermment of Oman is continuing with Its stated policy of wider and larger

Participation of the private sector in various spheres of econamic activities,

WGr& hitherto in its domain, Consequently, a number of large projects
onal importance, requiring considerable sums of investments are heing
gntg‘_g ‘at a fapid pace. Bank Dhofar has taken a conscious dacision to
gamcapate in financing of these projects within its prudential exposure -
ceordingly, the Project Finance & Syndication team continued to work

wl’ch.l_aeal and international banks, explaring the lending opportunities
0US projects,

Ver the. years the Bank has participated in several important local projecs
ng the projects of Sohar Refinery LLC, Oman Indla Fertilizer Cormpany
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LLC, Schar Aluminium, Oman LNG, Oman Gas, Salalah Port, Oman Refinery
(expansion) and the four power and water projects. The Bank has in place the
technical capability to independentiy lead arrange funds for mid-cap projects
and has a strategic tie-up with a few regional and International banks far
the purpose of ensuring full participation. A start in this direction has been
made with lead-arranging the funds for various projects taken up by reputed
companies. Realising the lending potential across the border the Rank. has

increased its participation in respect of cross horder deals within the permitted
regulatory cailing,

Date processing: Dry dades known as"Mabse! are
vsvally boifed kefore consumpdion.




Going forward we envisage a host of lending opportunities In the Infrastructure,
0il & Gas, Construction, and Tourism sectors taking into account the large
Government sponsored projects on the anvil as well as those privately
spansored. The 7th Five Year Plan, which is currently in its second year of
implementation, envisages a Governmental & Private Investment programme of
RO 13.15 billion over the five-year period. Of this, Oil & gas-related Investments
aggregate RO 7.3 hillion while investment In tourism projects is slated at
RO 958 million. Investments in other mega projects and in private sector
projects aggregate lo RO 2.85 billion.

SME department

The SME department that earlier included the Mid-sector corporate unit has
carved out a niche for itself by catering to the needs of small and medium-sized
entarprises. The SME department actively interfaces with the small and medium
companies to understand their requirements and devise sultahle solutions. The
focused approach towards this segment has clearly shown impressive resulis
not only In terms of the number of customers and volume of the portfolio but
also in terms of profitability to the Bank.

Corporate Advisory and Structured Finance:

Bank Dhofar is now capable of offering Corporate Advisory and Structured
Finance services to its top corporate and other institutional clients. These
services include financial advisory for project finance, access to capital markets,
corporate restructuring, mergers and acquisitions, privatisation and securitisation
transactions. The Bank shall explare both conventional and unconventional
solutions and offer, what is best suited for the customers’ requirements.
Activities In this area have commenced with an issue management mandate
from a leading Investment company in Oman and several other mandates in
the pipeline.

Private Clients and Investment Management

The Private and Investment Management Group which has relatively recently
commenced oparations, offers a range of investment banking services for its
customers, The Group has a team of highly qualified and experienced investment
bankers with the ability to manage and sxecute complex transactions. The
mission is to establish a niche investment banking business with the following
key products and services:

Brokerage Services: With a highly professional and experienced team, we
aim to provide a focused, professional, valus-added brokerage service fo
Institutional clients and High Net worth Individuals. The brokerage offering
is backed by high quality research, timely execution and excellent customer
service. Though the initial focus is only on MSM, moving forward we shall firm
up strategic alliances with leading brokerage houses in other GCC countries to
facllitate trading in GCC equities.

Management Discussion and AnaIySIS Report (contmued)

Research: The team comprising of qualified professionals monitor and
analyse the performance of major companies constituting the MSM 30 Index.
The following sectors were covered this year; Telecom, Cemant, Insurance,
Investment Holding Comparies, Power and Cil Marketing. The team also issues
3 daily market summary and generates an earnings update.

Asset Management: Qur asset management team manages discretionary
portfolios as well as establishes local and regional investment funds. The asset
management offering is targeted at leading institutional clients and proposes
to offer Investment opportunities in the GCC. Strongly supported by in-house
research, we expect to manage a significantly larger portfolio in 2007,

Privileged Banking: This is the main distrioution arm of the Private Clisnts
and Investment Management Group and provides marketing support in terms.
of identifying clients and originating mandates. The privileged banking team
provides wealth management solutions to its High Net worth clients, which
includes personal and family planning for medium and long-term objectives,
advise on family asset allocation and periodic investment appertunities.

Going forward, the Private Clients and Investment Management Group aims to.

enhance visibility of the Group thraugh powerful advertising, publication of Bark

Dhofar research in print media and participation in seminars etc. The Group wil
strive to expand its presence across the region.

Treasury & International Banking

The Treasury department controls the Bank's liquidily. In addition, it is
responsible for controlling the Interest-rate risk outside the trading book and:
for the liquidity raserve holdings. The functions of Treasury also include the
development and support of trading activity with the Bank's retall and corporate
clients, management of the Assets and Liability cash flows on a day-to-day

basls In line with directives from Asset & Liabiity Committes (ALCO), and
proprietary trading in the local and Internalional markets.

The Bank is one of the leading market makers in USD / RO and quotes very

competitive rates for buying / selling currencles against local currency. We offer

attractive interest rates on foreign currency deposits in all major currencies:
o corporate, retall and High Net worth individuals. Through Treasury we are’
praviding services of buying and selling Government securities like Government:

Development Bonds.

2006 saw another good performance by the Treasury. The growth was mainly

driven by greater penetration of corporate relationships together with increased
business from trade related activity,

International Banking provides a complete range of products and services il
the areas of trade-finance, foreign exchange and inter-bank markets. Our bank]
has a well established network of correspondents around the world. With our’
personalised and professional approach to our customer’s varled requirements,

Bank Dhofar has emerged as an important player in the field of Correspondent
Banking.

The year 2006 proved to be another successful year for International Banking
unit. The Bank secured a US$100 Million syndicated loan facility for 3 years
with a view to further improve the balance sheet structure, specitically matching
the maturity profile of assets and liabilities, Twenty international banks from
USA, Furope and Middle Fast pariicipated in the facllity. The participation of
these banks was a reflection of the confidence of the international community
in the country and in our Bank. This financing venture was extremely succassful
with the syndication being oversubscrined.

Support Services

ey departments in the Support Services Group are Central Operations, Credit
Administration, Credit Conirol, Logistics, Premises, Procurement and Recoveries.

Central Operations (COD)

During the year under review the Central Operations continued to fuel the engine
of the Bank's growth in its now established role as the centralised processor
of the Bank.

Once again, the COD played a major role in implemerting the next component
of Oman’s National Payment System — the Automated Clearing House (ACH),
which is managed by the Central Bank of Oman. With the introduction of the
ACH system, Oman's Rial Omani inter-bank payments are now fully automated
— RTES System handling the high-value, low-volume payments and the ACH
System processing the low-value, high-volume payments such as salaries,
standing instructions, direct debits, etc.

Anther Important milestone during the year was the formal transfer of the
Bank's Communication Section to the Central Operations Division from the
International Division. With this transition, the COD now controls the Bank's
outward / Inward payment messages in Rial Omani (via RTGS / ACH) as well as
In foreign Currencies (via SWIFT),

The COD continued to take an active role in the automation of processes hy
linking the core banking system with SWIFT ACH, etc. The Automated Teller
Module introduced at a pilot location is also intended ta sst the trend for

‘system-generated vouchers and registers with the objective of eliminating

manually prepared records.

The re-engineering of processes enabled the zero-balance account closure

Cycle to be reduced by 50% and also to merge the 3 foreign currency cash
registers into one,

The COD played a major role in the implementation of the Bank's newest
glecironic banking channel, The Deposit & Bil Payment Machine, which even

provides the facilty to depos't cheques, a service yet to be offered by any ofher
Iocal bank.

Two other major ongoing projects handled by COD are the revision of individual
account documentation (initigted by the Consumer Barking Division) and the
revision of the Bank's Operations Instruction Manual,

The COD also continued to add value to each centralised process, so that operating
standards remained high compared to industry averages. With the constant
review of Bank's operating systems and procedures, COD continues to play an
important role in rigk-mitigation, process optimisation and cost reduction,

Information Technology

T division facilitated introduction of new channel for the customers' convenlence
in the form of Smart Deposit machines, This channel enabled customers to
teposit cash, cheques In the Bank and pay their bills anytime.

IT division migrated all the branches of the Bank from Netware to latest
technology Windows 2003 Active Directory that helped the Bank to manage its
systems with greater speed and efficiency. This enabled bank to provide quicker
and mare effective service to its valued customers.

[T division led the successful completion of Automated Clearing House (ACH)
project for the Bank, This Initiative is part of country lavel Electronic Fund
Transfer strategy initiated by Central Bank of Oman. The Bank also introduced
KYC and Anti-money laundsaring system in 2008.

IT division would be working towards infroducing Business Intelligence tools
to enable bank’s business divisions to access information for better decision
making. The Bank would be moving fts ATMs system to the latest technology
solution along with introduction delivery channel integration platform to offer
better services to Bank’s customers.

Human Resources

“Value creation’ being the primary focus of HR's strategic role, several measures
were intraduced during the year 2006 fo build a high performance culture
across the Bank,

Eiet Cejebration: The fuo Elels are occasions of sreaf rejoicing,
anel are celebrated with fanfare, music and olancingin afl
parts of Oman.
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in line with HR role of evolving as a slrategic partner, actions were initiated to
review the current HR policies, processes and systems during the year.

Under the guidance of HR Strategic Committee and the Chief Executive of the
Bank, the following projects wiere launched:

1. Designing and implementing Cormpetency Model far the Bank

2, Conducting industry salary survey and aligning Bank Dhofar's salary
structure with the industry

3. Carrying out a staff satisfaction survey

4. Speeded up recruitments

5. |dentification of talent and high-filers and implementing fast-track
promotions

6. Assessment of existing training practices and streamlining training modules
to align with business needs

7. Initiating changes in the training policy with focus on overseas fraining

 Introducing of 2 new unit In HR dedicate t© "Staff Development’

[==]

Organisational level and position-wise competency mapping grids created to
measure existing individual competencies. The Knowledge, Skills and Attitudes
required 1o effectively perform jobs for all posttions in the branch natwork wiere
gathered, listed and analysed. The process was developed with the suppart of
task forces across branches and HR. On completion of the position profiling
exercise, mapping the current level of skills of individual staff on the jobs were
done by the respective managers. The outcome will be used to provide focused
fraining and cater to individuel needs.

Competency dictionaries were created for three levels in the Bank, 1., Senior
Management, Middle Management and Junior Grades. These skill sets will be
used to augment succession and career planning.

An Industry salary survey covering leading banks in Sultanate was undertaken
and completed by the HR department. A review committee appointed by the
Management studied resulls of the survey and recommendad a substantial
salary increase for all grades in the Bank. The new salary struciure was
implemented effective April 2006,

In order fo understand voice of staff on organisational issues, a Bank-wide
staff satisfaction survey was carried out In July-August 2006. The staff
enthusiastically participated in the survey and the findings were presented o
HR sub-committee of the Board. Staff recagnition, staff suggestion scheme and
several other progressive steps commencing 2007, were introduced as a result
of the survey.

Due to expansion of activities and delivery channels, over 100 staff had to be
racruited and the Bank was able to maintain Omanisation ratio of over 91.8,
despite the high rate of recruitment.

The Bank was aiso able to curtail attrition ratio even in the face of vast number
of new joh opportunities created by new players entering the banking and
financial industry in Sultanate.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report (continued)

A system was designed to capture number of training hours completed oy each
employes and fraining was arranged to provide those, who did not meet the
required number of training hours. A special week-long training on Anti-Money
Laundering was organised to cover all staff.

In line with the Bank’s policy to provide international exposure and evolve
benchmark practices, executives were sponsored 10 attend overseas
programmes and encouraged o embark on banking and professional courses.
The intermal training faculty was developed to manage functional training.

Ag advised by the Bank’s consultant Emst and Young in 2005, a special unit
dedicated to staff deveiopment was pstablished in the HR deparment. A
qualified manager with required skills wes recruited, and coaching, counselling,
career planning and staff development matters were entrusted to this unit. Ling.
managers were also frained by fnis unit as mentors, coach and counsellors o
equip them with required people akills o manage their HR 1ssues.

RISK MANAGEMENT:
a. RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE:

The Bank has a well established Risk Management Division with & team af
competent and experienced professionals. The primary respongibility of the
RMD is to ensure on a continuous basis that an gffective risk management
framework exists and the various divisions of the Bank function within this
framework. AMD also functions as an interface between the Management an |
the Board In defining appropriate risk tolerance levels for various businesses

and operating divisions of the Bank and in ensuring that policies and procedures &/

are tallored to the defined tolerance levels,

b. RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY:

The Risk Management strategy of the Bank is pivated on the following:

1. A clear understanding of varlous risks assumed by the business and
operating divisions of the Bank; '

5. Well defined and disciplined risk measurement processes and procedurss
for the divisions by way of well documented authorlty levels and limits;

3. Continuous monitoring and control of these imits; and

4. Continuous reporting systems o various authority levels on compliance.

A brief description of verious identifiable risks and their risk managemen!

procass Is given below:

1. Credit Risk

Credit Risk refers to the risk that counter parties may default where cradif

facliities have been provided to them, due to various reasons which could:
be Industry-specific or buginess-specific. This risk is primarily controllad ant
managed by dealing with customers of good credit standing, & thorough @ d
professional credit assessment, obtaining collaterals and contlnuous monitoring
of conduct of the account. At the parifolio level, the risk is further monitored 0y
various limits established including group exposure fimits.

The Bank employs experienced and competent staff in the areas of corporale
banking, provides them with regular training to upgrade and hone their
credit skills. Detailed credit policies and procedures, strict adherence o the
segregation of duties principle, elaborate and well defined authority levels,
periodical audit and examination by the internal auditors ensure that the culture
of risk permeates through the business divisions supported by a rigorous
environment of checks and balances.

2. Liquidity and Interest Rate Risk :
Liquidity Risk s the potential inability of the bank to meet its maturing obligations

o & counter party. Liquidity planning and management are necessary to ensure

that the bank has the ability to fund its operations cosl effectively and to meet
ourrent and future potential obligations such as loan commitments, contingent
liquidity commitments and unexpected deposit outflows.

\While the Bank's Asset-Liability Committee (ALCO) is responsible for setting
the broad framework for managing liquidity risk effectively, the respansibilty
of managing liquidity risk of the Bank, within this framework, lies with Treasury
Divlsion, which discharges this furiction with the assistance of other business
divisions of the Bank.

Tnaaank fias clearly documented Board and ALCO —approved policy guidefines
of critical liquidity and gap ratios and RMD monitors that the Bank operates
within these guidelines.

 level ALCD meeting is held every month to discuss strategic medium
ng term liquidity and interest rate issues. Additionally ALCO meets as and
 required, to discuss dynamic day-to-day market issues impacting the

Bank's liquidity and interest rates.

Market Risk

tisk Is the risk of loss arising from unexpected changes in financial

ﬁﬁﬁ% ising out of changss in Interest rate, exchange rate, bond, equity and

 prices, The risks, which are Important to the bank are currency and
rate risk,

_ Tcrgign currency in which the Bank deals on a regular basis is US
_-gstab!lshed parity between LS Dollar and Rial Omani substantially
 this risk. However, in order to control currency exposure risk, limits for

nira-day and overnight postions have been set up in addition to eurrency wise

s limits. The Central Bank of Oman (CBO) has als set prudential narms

ﬁ" the net open position fo restrict the banks from taking undue currency

ank manages the Interest rate risk by matching the repricing of assefs
]Télt_?ﬂ!hes through various means and operating within the set gap limits.
reign currency loans are linked to LIBOR (London Inter-bank Offered Rate)

and reprice regularly to reduce the attendant interest rate risk.
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4. Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from Inadequate or failed internal
systems, processes, people or from extornal events. The Bank has detalled
policies and procedures thatare regularly updated toensure that a sound intermal
control environment exists in the Bank, Trained and competent staffs oversee
the various operational functions of the Bank, Tested and up-to-date disaster
recovery plans exist to provide normal banking services in the event of any
unforeseen disruption to business. The Bank has also issued detailed guidelings
lo the operating units and branches on identifying potential operational risks
and to put in place appropriate key controls to mitigate such risks.

Risk Management Division also conducts regular training programmes for staff
at various levels to Inculcate 'risk awareness’ and to spread the general ‘risk
management culture’ in the Bank.

Youth: An Omani boy wearing fraditional headgear
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c. INITIATIVES: FOR FURTHER ENHANCEMENT
IN THE RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS:

e The Bank has been using the Moody’s Risk Advisar softwars, a globally
reputed credit analysls tool to ald in assessing the credit risk in lending
proposals, The software's capabllity has been further enhanced during the
year by updating the data on the system to give the approving authorities
guality parameters to assist in credit decision making process. The
corporate credit proposals are reviewed by BMD whose observations form
an Important input in the credit risk management process.

The Bank is in the final stages of putting in place a front-end software
package for effective management of ils assets and lighllities from a rigk
perspective. It is expected that when the system Is in place, the Bank will not
only be able to enhance the quality of it's risk management of this important
part of it's business, but also will assist the line management to enhance It's
performance levels.

As part of an overall Risk Management process, the Bank has updated Its
Business Continuity Plan (BCP) and Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) during the
year, Both these plans will be tested during the first quarter of 2007, by an
independent external agency on a simulated basis to ensure that the BCP
and DRP will work in a real situation, thus giving a significantly higher level
of comfort to the Board and the Management of the Bank.

d.BASEL Il

CBO has directed that the banks operating in the Sultanate of Oman are
required fo do computation of their capital adequacy under Basel Il with
effect from 1 January 2007. The Bank has decided to adopt the Standardised
Approach for Credit Risk and the Basic Indicator Approach for Operational
Risk. The Bank is confident that it will be In a position to adopt the Basel Il
Accord and satisfy CBO mandated capital adequacy ratio of 10% through
the year 2007.

Financial Performance

The total assets of the Bank increased to RO 694,79 million In 2006 as
compared to RO 618.22 million in 2005, represanting a growth of 12.39%. The
gross loans and advances increased by 15.41% in 2006 to RO 594.72 million
from RO 515.30 million in 2005. An analysis of loans and advances showed
that Retail Loans in 2006 grew by 8.10% to RO 238.09 million as compared
to RO 220.25 million in 2005. The Corporate Loans and Advances grew by
20.76% to RO 299.92 millien In 2006 from RO 248.37 million in 2005. The
Mid-sector Loans and Advances increased by 21.48% to RO 56.70 million in
2006 from RO 46.68 million in 2005.

The ratio of total non-performing loans to total loans reduced to 7.00% in 2006
from 7.88% in 2005,

Management Discussion and Analysis Report (continued)

A break-down of Loans and Advances outstanding at the end of 2006 and

2005 is provided below:

RO million
2006 2005
Overdrafts 75.28 62.65
L.oans 471.09 414.33
Loans against Trust Receipts 33.40 22.70

Bills Discounted 1.48 418
Advance against Credit Cards 4.16 418
Others 9.31 7.26

Gross Loans and Advances to Customers 594.72 515.30

Liess; Allowance for Impairment -45.90 -44.36

Net Loans and Advances 548.82 470.94

The Customers deposits rose by 9.96% to RO 497,14 millicn In 2006 from RO
452.13 million in 2005, An analysis of the Customers' Depasits revealed thal
Demand Deposit in 2008 increased by RC 3.67 million or 3.02% to RO 124.89
million from RO 121.22 million In 2005. The Savings Deposits increased by’
27.89% in 2006 to RO 86.55 million from RO 67.67 million In 2005. The Time &
Deposit grew by 8.54% in 2006 o RO 285.71 millien from RO 263.23 million

in 2008. A breakdown of Customers’ Deposit is given below:
RO million

2006 2005

Current Accounts 123.23 119.56

Saving Accounts 86.55 67.68
Time Deposits 285.71 263.23
Margin Accounts 1.65 1.66
Total Customer Accounts 497.14 45213

Shareholders’ Equity
The shareholders' equity at the end of 2006 was RO 93.28 million as compared

with RO 79.41 million at the end of 2005, At the end of 2008 we transferred
RO 2.01 million to legal reserve being 10% of net profit, RO 1.47 million t0
subordinated bonds reserve being 20% amortisation of the total amount of
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putstanding subordinated bonds of RO 7.36 million which will mature in 2008
and RO 2.81 million to retained earnings.

The Bank will retain RO 1.47 milion to be transferred to suhordinated
bonds reserve and RO 2.81 million to retained sarnings, The proposed profit
appropriation for 2006 is as follows:

RO million )
RO million
2006 2005
2006 2005
46.16 41.96 _ _
Proposed Dividends - Cash 6.92 4.20

5.43 543

Proposed Dividends - Bonus Shares ' 6.92 4,20

9.87

7.86

Legal Reserve 2.01 1.42

5.89 442

Subordinated Bonds Reserve 1.47 1.47

2.23 4.29

Retained Earnings 2.91

23.70 15.45

Net Profit for the year 20.13 14.20

eholders’ Equity 93.28 79.41

As aresult of increase in shareholders’ equity the net assets per share Increased

s Future Prospects
o R0 0.202 in 2006 from RO 0.189 In 2005,

Oman’s economy s experiencing a good aconomic growth due to favourable oil
prices and sound macro-ecanomic policies pursued by public sector. In addition,
neighbouring countries of Oman are alse experiencing accelerated economic
growth. The accelerated economic growth In Oman and In neighbouring

countries would help the Bank to grow and show a better performance in
2007,

Income Statement
T_l]’f@finterem income for the year 2006 amounted to RO 42,29 million as compared
With RO 34.74 million for the same period in 2005, showing a growth of 21.73 %.
.Entsmst_exp'enses for the year 2006 amounted to RO 16.04 million as opposed 1o
10.34 millior for 2005, showing an increase by RO 5.7 million or 55,12 %. The
erestincome for the year 2006 amounted to RO 26.25 million as comparad
with RO 24.40 million for the same period in 2008, showing a growth of 7,58 %.
I'I.‘f-je?:?ﬁcn—i'merest income grew by 55.55% to RO 8.68 million In 2006 a5 opposed
iuRG 5.58 million In 2005. The share of non-interest income to operating Income
inereased to 24.84 % in 2006 from 18.63% in 2005. The operating expenses
j] creased by 3.34% to RO 13,61 million from B0 1317 million in 2005, The net
Piofit before tax for the year 2006 amounted to RO 21,98 million as compared
Wity RO 16.13 million for 2005, representing a growth of 36.27 %.

The _B;aljk made all provisions as required for impaired assats. The amount
ﬁ agd_llt_iunal provisions for impaired assets provided in 2006 was RO 2.69
Tnllljun'rn comparison with RO 2.78 miflion provided in 2005, The reversal from

l:i lsians _fnr impaired assets in 2006 amounted to RO 3.52 million as opposed
10.R0 2,12 million in 2005,

TI‘IBnetpmflt In 2006 grew by 41.77% to RO 20.13 million in comparison with
an ferease 0f 28,1% to RO 14.20 million in 2005. The earning per share {EPS)
grew in 2006 to RO 0,045 from RO 0,034 in 2005.

ThB Board of Directors proposed RO 6.92 million in cash dividends which
mﬁm?gnts 15% of share capilal of the Bank. The Board of Directors also proposed
RO 6.92 miflion in bonus shares representing 15% of share capital of the Bank,

Smile: Portait of an Omani woman.
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For the Year As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
- : : j December December December December December
]
(InR0/000} _ || 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
2006 2005 | o 2004 2003 2002 I
Net Interest Income 26,245 24 396 23,264 21,402 18,224
maly (1]
Non-Interest Income 8,675 5,584 5,187 5,040 4,068 il L [ ] 1B:4%
Operating Costs 13,614 13,170 12,497 11,016 8,854 45.66% 33.8% 2B.4% 26.5% 1%
& 0, q, )
Operating Profit (before impairment losses) 21,306 16,810 15,954 15,426 13,438 3.07% 2.4% 2.2% 2.5% 2.4%
Profit from Operations 21,976 16,131 12,600 11,423 9335 24.84% 18.6% 18.2% 19.1% 17.4%
Net meﬁfﬁrthe Yeal‘ 20‘13]] 14’1 gg 11 ,0?8 10}1 58 8,256 38-%% 439% 43.9% 41 .7% 39.7%
At year end
Total Assets 694,799 618,226 551,293 474,085 344,003 T N e 05.4% .
Net Loans Portfolio 548,819 470,937 406,503 7,102 2eE008 jstomer Deposits to Total Deposits 87.52% 88.3% 92.4% 93.1% 97.6%
i 497,142 452,132 421,003 358,397 277,219 Y
Customer Deposits ' RATIOS
Shareholders’ Equity 93,281 79,405 ' 67,771 63127 47,408
~ F Loan Los: 7.71% 8.6% 9.5% 9.3% 6.3%
Share Capltal 46,158 41,962 41,962 41,962 35,280
 Loans to Total Loans 7.00% 7.7% 8.3% 8.7% 5.3%
Full Service Branches 48 47 47 45 43 _
 Provisions to Total Non Performing Loans 110% 112% 114% 106% 121.7%
ATMs 79 79 66 82 58 :
Staff 636 598 579 562 431
16.40% 15.3% 15.3% 15.6% 14,3%
o on Tier One Capital 14.70% 13.1% 13.0% 12.8% 13.0%
ers’ Equity / Total Assets 13.40% 17.8% 12.3% 13.3% 13.8%
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Financial Highlights of Last Five Years
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Branches, ATM’s &
Deposit & Bill Payment Machine

A Total of
48 Branches,

84 ATM’s
& 6 Deposit & Bill Payment
Machines Nationwide

This map cannot be & reference for international borders
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Bank Dhofar Branch Network Contact Details’
O BRANCH TEL. MO, FAX NO. RO, BOK NO BRAKCH
1 Al Khuwair 2 24484880 - 24480008 - 24485554 24483366 2717, PC 112 Runi 25 Hafont
2 Al Khoudh 24535132 - 24545026 - 24542825 24545268 1507, PC 112 Ruwt 26 Saham
3 Al Khuwalr 245012040 - 24602374 - 24E0324D 24801822 1507, PC 12 uwi 27 Sohar
4 Al Khuwai Ministry 24694710 - 24694725 - 24604715 24694730 1591, PC 130 Aziba 28 Shinas
5 AlAmerat 24876580 - 24876120 24875820 346 PC 119 Amerat 29 Buraimi
6 Anaiba 24496611 - 24495075 24406079 378, PC 133 0 AlAragi
. 7 MWadiAMiGahlr 24614127 - 24814126 2AB14128 1507, PC 112 Runi 31 Il
L[| 8 Bausher 24502606 - 24595094 24505373 148 PC 120 Azaiba a2 Barkat Al Mauz
8 Greater Muttrah 24793297 - 24707959 - 24706636 24706103 1831, PC 112 Ruwi 33 Bahla
10 MBD 24750516 - 24700466 24798621 1507, PG 112 Rudi 34 Bid B
11 Museat 24787866 - 24736514 - 24726606 - 24737086 24739166 1613, PG 114 Mutirah 35 Nizwa
12 Mutirah 24712670 - 24714452 - 24714279 24713656 1441, PC 112 Ruwd 36 Sumal
! 13 AlQuum 2ASGRAGT - PASB771 - PARGI673 24567679 108, PC 114 Mutirah 37 1k
14 Ruwd 24835854 - 24831080 24831802 1442, PC 112 Ruli 38 EssSur
15 Gueb Arport 24510101 - 24510537 - 24 510102 4510468 56, B0 Saeb PC 111 39 A Mintib
‘ 16 Seeb Town 24426851 - 24425852 - 24424434 - 24423373 24495627 347, PC121 Al-Sech 40 la
17 Waitayah 24565137 - 24566731 - 24565208 24566732 1507, PG 112 Auwi 41 JEBAI
18 Al Khadira 26714154 - 26714162 26714163 505, FC 315 A-Suvaig 42 Sinaw
‘ 19 Suwaig 25852001 - 26862010 26862102 585, PC 415 Smvalg 48 Sur
11| 20 Khaboura 26801486 - 26801028 28905130 423.PC 326 44 A Karil Al Waii
21 Al Muladdal 2AAGRA44 - PEBAESED 26860549 106 FC 341 Muladdah 45 Samad A'Shan
22 AlRustag 26876030 - 26875117 26875501 25, PC 318 Pustag 46 ASaara
‘ 23 AlGhashab 26878737 - 26876759 26678707 216,PC329 47 Salalah
24 Barka 26664473 - 26884428 2BER44E1 751, PC320 Barka 48 Al Wai
ATM & CDM Locations:
Shell Filling Station - Al Mawalsh South @
Muscat Branch + Seeb Town Branch + =

Muttrah Branch *

MBD Branch + &

Greater Muttrah Branch +

Al Wadi Al Kabir Branch +
Ruwi Branch +

Al Amerat Branch
Wattayah Branch *

Qurum Branch +m

Al Khuwair Branch + m

Al Khuwalr Cantre Branch »
Sarog) ®

Al Maha Filling Statlon - Al Khuwair ®
PIC & SAVE - Al Khuwair @
Bausher Branch

Zain Factory - Bausher @
|8 Al Ghilbrah - Roundibout @
Azalba Branch *

Seeb Alrport Branch +

Markaz Al Bahja @

Al Khoudh Branch #

Omanall Filling Station - Al Khoudh @
* A of May 2007

Oman International Exhibition Centre - Saah @

Al Maha Filling Station - Al Maahels ®
Shell Filling Station - Azalba @
Mercure Al Falaj Hotel - Ruwi ®

Al Maha Souk - Ruwl (Hamriya R/4) @
Al Maha Souk - Ameral ®

Al Maha Souk - Anzab @

Al Maha Souk - Wattaya @
Al Maha Souk - Ghubra @

Al Maha Souk - MS0 @

BATINAH REGION

Barka Branch *
Al Rustaq Branch
Al Ghashab Branch *

Al Muladdah Branch #

Slvaiq Branch +

Al Khadhra Branch #
Khaboura Branch *
Hafeet Branch *
‘Saham Branch +
Sohar Branch
Shinas Branch +

Sohar University, Sohar @

TEL.NO,
26817646 - 26817001 - 26617992
2664400 - ZREEER0G
26841712 - 26840 - 26R40228
26748302 - 26748306 - 26748308
23655647 - 25651696 - 25651989
25695071 - 25694126
25680341 - 25669685
25443466 - 25443450
26420021 - 25420292
25369254 - 25369044 - 26369033
26410234 - 25411370
25861283 - 25351188
25340363 - 25340088
25545867 - 265644350 - 26541012
25583853 - 25584049
25671632 - 25571631
25653440 - 25553414
25524663 - 25524367
2h546577- 2EE41255 - 25540255
25557134 - 28687501
25626736 - 26626620
23225463 - 23225400
23204880 - 23202200 - 23204863
23211130 - 23212185 - 23212180

Al Maha Soulc - Batha Hilal Suweig @
Al Maha Souk - Al Magaza (Hafee!) @
Al Maha Souk - Musannah @

Al Maha Souk - Al Mullah [Sohar) @
Al Maha Souk - A Hazem (Rustag) @
Al Maha Souk - Al Wagalba [Sohar) @

DHAHIRAH REGION

lori Branch +

Al Aragi Branch +
Buraimi Branch #
Al Maha Souk @

DAKHILIYA REGION

Bld Bid Branch *
Samall Branch *

Izki Branch *
Barlat Al Mauz Branch +

Al Shafas - MOD @
Nizwa Branch +

Bahla Branch *
Al Mata Souk - Fala] Dariz (Nizwa) @

SHARGIYA REGION

Sinaw Branch

Samad A'Shan Branch +
|bra Branch *

FAX NO. F.O. B
26817993 596 FC 319 Sah
26855277 92, PC 319 Saf
26841220 21,PC211 Song
26748304 434 PC 324 S
PEEEI11E 278, POEI2 Byy
26695047 90, PC 515 lrag
25690341 28, PG 511 Il

25443462 97, FC 616 8, i

25420387 651, PC 612 Bl
25360055 307, PC 613 B
25411204 B3, PL611 Ny
25350094 199, PG 520 5y
25340204 412, PC 614 2
25644710 323, PC 414
26583610 154, PG 421
25570646 514, FC 413 1by
25553046 10 PGA10 Jaan:
25524823 206, PC 418 i
26640615 75, PCATY Sur
265657062 294, FC 4124

25526574
23275179
23701631 23205291
23210085 2334, PC 2118

Mintriby Branch

Al lamil Al Wali +

J.BBAI Branch +

Al Ees Branch #

Sur Branch +

hudhaibi @

DHOFAR REGION

Salalah Branch + W

Shell Filling Station - Salalah @

New Salalah- Al Najaf Street @

Al Qoaf - Salaam Strest ®

Haffa - Sultan Qaboos Street @
Saada Branch

Dahareez @

Al Wadi 8ranch « m

Shall Filling Station - Al Salam Streat
Al Awgadain @ '

LEGENDS

& Branch ATM
@ Oif-site ATM
= DM
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DeIO|tte & Deloitte & Touche (M.E.)

Muscat International Centre
Ground Floor

Location: MBD Area

P.O. Box 258, Ruwi

Postal Code 112
Sultanate of Oman

Tel: +968 24817775
Tel: +968 24815896
Fax: +968 2481558
www.deloitte.com

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Bank Dhofar SAOG

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bank Dhofar SAOG, which comprise of the balarce sheet as at 31 December 2006, and the
income stalement, statement of changes in equily and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant aceounting policies and other
xplanatory notes as set out in pages 32 to 64. The financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 Dacember 2005 were audited by another auditor
\whose report dated 30 January 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

'Mﬁn'a'_gement. I responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
- Standards, This responsibility includes: designing, Implementing and maintaining internal control refevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
- slatements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the clrcumstances.

iditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to sxpress an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards

'L'[ditirj'g. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
icial statements are free from malerial misstatement,

idit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Tha procedures selected
d_'o'n the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of malerial misstatement of the financial slatements, whether due to fraud or error,
_aﬁfing those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank's preparalion and fair presentation of the financial statements in
?@ﬂrmidesign audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an apinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
iﬁfémal control, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
! gement, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the firancial statements.

I UT opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of Bank Dhofar SAQG as of 31 Decernber 2008, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

'lr:_ll.'ﬂur' opinimj, the financial statements comply, in all material respects, with the disclosure requirements sat out in the Rulss for Disclosure and Proformas
ued by the Capital Market Authority and those prescribed under the Commercial Companies Law of 1974, as amencded, of the Sultanate aof Omarn.

28 February 2007

= ) ) - ) Member of
Audit. Tax . Consulting . Financial Advisory. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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at 31 December 2006

2006 2005.
UsD’000 UsD'000
219,322 219,075

76,335 67,081
1,425,504 1,223,213
23,631 34,800
28,234 29,013
10,314 10,314
10,784 9,992
10,548 12,291
1,804,672 1,605,779
184,101 156,000
1,291,278 1,174,369
67,883 50,041
19,122 19,122
1,562,384 1,300,532
119,891 108,992
14,101 14,101
25,636 20,408
15,294 11,470
5,795 11,140
61,571 40,136
242,288 208,247
1,804,672 1,605,779
291,218 273,995
0.52 048

-~

Eng. Abdul Hafidh Salim Rajab Al-Aujaili

Chairman

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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- USD'000 RO'000 RO'000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 84,439 84,344 90,228  Interest income 42,287 34 738
Loans and advances to banks 5 29,389 25,626 (26,862)  Interest expense (16,042) (10,242)
Loans and advances to customers 6 548,819 470,937 63366 Netinterest income o P—
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 7 9,098 13,398 T — ! ;
Available-for-sale Investments 8 10,870 11,170 R 8,675 5,584
Intangible assets 9 3,971 3,97 77,870 Operating income 34,920 29,880
Property and equipment 10 4,152 3,847
Other assets 1 4,061 4,732 (31,439)  Staff and administrative costs (12,471) (12,104)
Total assets 694,799 618,225 (2,769)  Depreciation (1,143) (1,088)
LIABILITIES (34,208)  Operating expenses (13,614) (13,170)
08 o ks 19 70.879 40,060 43,662 Profit from operations befare provision 21,306 16,810
Deposits from customers 13 497,142 452,132 e (2,646) (2,781)
Ot liabilties 14 26,135 19 266I 5,607  Recoveries from provision for loan impairment 3,517 2120
Subordinated bonds 15 7,362 7,362 § oAbkl (158) (18)
Total liabilities 601.518 538 62 D= - Impairment of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (43)
- —_ 41,899  Profit from operations after provision
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY - — 21,975 16,131
] ncome tax expense :
Share capiel 16 46,158 41,962 ——— _ (1450 1,989
Share premium 5,429 5,429 | Netwolitortie yesr 20,130 14,199
Legal reserve 17 9,870 7,857 : ( QE Earnings per share basic and diluted (Rial Omani / US Dollar) 0.045 0.034
Subordinated bond reserve i1 5,888 4,416 = =
Investment revaluation reserve 17 2,231 4,289
Retained earmings 23,705 15,45 N0 notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Total shareholders’ equity 93,281 79,405
i
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 694,799 61 BE_S_
Contingent liabilities and commitments 27 112119 105,488
Net assets per share (Rial Omani / US Dollar) 0.202 Di 89?_

Ahmed Ali Al Shanfari
Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of chan

for the year ended 31 December 2006

| Share
capital
Notes RO'000

1 January 2005 41,962
Net profit for the year -
Fair value increase

Total recognised incorme for 2005 =

Net transfer fo income statement on sale of
available-for-sale investments

Dividends paid for 2004 -
Transfer to legal reserve 17 -
Transfer to subordinated bond reserve 17 =
31 December 2005 41,962

1 January 2006 Notes 41,962

Profit for the year 1
Fair value decrease i
 Total recognised income for 2006 ; |

Net transfer to income statement on sale of
available-for-sale investments

Dividend paid for 2005 5
Bonus issue for 2005 4,196
Transfer to legal reserve 17 -
Transfer to subordinated bond reserve 17 -
31 December 2006 46,158

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Share
' premium
RO'000

5429

5,429

5,429

5,429

ges in equity

| Subordinated  Investment

Legal bond  revaluation
| eamings

reserve | reserve [eserve

RO'00. ~ RO'000  RO'OC0

6,437 2,944 560

2 . 3,978

3,978

(249)

1,420 = =
1,472

7,857 4418 4,280

7,857 4,416 4,289

- - (455)

= = (455)

- . (1,603)

2,013 - -

= 1,472 -

0870 5888 2,231

Retained

RO’'000

10,439
14,199

14,199

(6,294)
(1,420)
(1.472)
15,452

(4,196)
(4,196)
(2,013)

- (1472)

23,705

= o e ‘ <\ : . -."' . \,‘:\nr'".lar
L W bankdhpfércom Report
BN R0 S, e 2006

i . Investment |
Share Share  legal Subordlnated revaluation Rt
; = capit2l — premium  reserve  bondreseve reserve
4 Notes  USD'000 = USD'000  USDIG0D I | Usp'poo

108,992

14101 16,720 7,647 1455 27,114 176,029

- . - 36,880 36,880
: - - : 10,332 10,332
| Income for 2005 - - 10332 36880  47.212

& statement on sale of
= = = - 647) - (647)

- (16,348)  (16,348)

Vi 17 - E 3,688 - - (3,688) -
fdinated bond reserve 17 - - 3,823 - (3823 -
79,403 ] 108992 14101 20,408 11,470 11,140 40135 206,246

Notes 108,992 14101 20,408 11,470 11,140 40,135 206,246

52,286 52,286
P 5 - £ (1,182) (1,182)
i : (1,182) 52,286 51,104

(4,164) (4,164)

(10,899)  (10,899)

. 10,399 - - - - (10,899) -
17 - - 529 - - (5,229 -

i (ISt ; - - 3,823 - (3823 -
| 119891 14101 25637 15203 5794 61571 242287
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Cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005
UsD’000 USD’000
129,948 102,337
(36,255) (23,449)
(13,449) (40,343}
80,244 38,545
(204,553) (169,203)
5,418 5629
. (22,987)
- 155,065
(199,135) (31,496)
116,309 80,621
27,826 66,857
144,735 147,478
25,844 154,527
(4,493) (4,015
21,351 150,512
1,294 1,600
(10,561) (5,236)
17,052 16,914
(3,855) (3,826)
262 125
4,192 9,577
(10,899) (16,349)
(10,899) (16,349)
14,644 143,740
266,205 122,465
280,849 266,205
219,322 219,075
(1,299) (1,299)
64,335 49,662
(1,509) (1,234)
280,849 266,205

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest and commission receipts

Interest payments

Cash payments to suppliers and employees

Increase in operating assets
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to banks
Purchase of treasury bills

Proceeds from sale of treasury bills

Incraase in operating liabilities
Deposits from customers
Due to banks

Net cash from operating activities
Income tax pald
Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment income

Purchase of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchase of property and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

Cash flow from financing activiiies
Dividend paid
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Cash and cash equivalents

Capital cleposit with Central Bank of Oman

Loans and advances to banks dug within 90 days
Due to banks within 90 days

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

wwivbankdhofar.com ‘Report
Joni i o 2006

P, ¥

Ny Q R

. : Legal status and principal activities

2006 2005
RO'000 RO’000 |
. G (the Bank) is Inoorporategl in the Sullanate of Oman as a public joint stock company and is principally engaged in corporate, retail and investment
50,030 39,400 he Bank has a primary listing on the Muscat Securities Market (MSM) and its principal place of business is the Head Dffice, Capital Business
(13,958) {9,028), D), Muscat, Sultanate of Oman.
(5,178) (15,532
30,894 148408 Principal accounting policies
iR st - Basis of preparation
2,086 2,167 | __
) (8,850 ial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (FRS), the requirements of the Commercial Companies
! 59,700 -amenced and disclosure requirements of the Capital Market Authority.
(76,667) (12,126 J
tgmgnts have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for derivative financial instruments, financial instruments at fair value through profit
45,010 31,039 §&nd lahle for sale financial assets which are measured at fair value.
10,713 25,740
55,723 55r775| ave been consistently applied in dealing with items that are considered material in relation 1o the Bank's financial statements to all the years
9,950 50,4938 l
(1,730) (1.5 . . . .
8,220 57 ol | of financlal statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exsrcise its
1 process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
[ -are significant fo the financial statements, are disclosed in note 32.
498 : e
(4,066) 2,018 orisation of these financlal statements the following standards were in issue but not yet effective:
6,565 5,51 i Il‘bsl':mrnents Disclosures
(1,484) a, ment of Embedded Derivatives
101 j im Financial Reporting and Impairment
1,614 8,681} 1
ticipates that the adoption of the standard will have no material impact on the financial statements of the Bank.
(4,196) (6,294 = =
4.196) 6,294 ign currency translations
5,638 55,340 wctional and presentation currency
102,483 47,14 :
108,127 102, : !l e Banlcs financial statements are measurad using Rial Omani, which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Bank
; to the nearest thousand.
84,439 84,34 _
(500) (ooUEEE L Jransactions and balances
24,769 19,
(581) ( transactions are translat ' i
108,127 v NSac ranslated Into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foraign exchange gains

—_— : ng from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of manetary assets and liabilities denominated in

S are recagnised in the income statement. Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held at fair value through profit or Ioss,

art ¢ fqt\l'b.e. .fa.Ir value gain or [oss. Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
stment revaluation reserve in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 (continued)

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 (continued)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement principles

23 Financial instruments

237, Classification

led investments in active markets are based on current bid prices, If the market for a financial assat is not active (and for unlisted securlties),

s fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm'’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis and other
commonly used by market participants.

The Bank classifies Its financial assets in the following categories; financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and receivables; held—tc-m_'_
investments; and avallable-for-sale financial assets. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition.

h flow technigues are used, estimated future cash flows-are based on management's best estimates and the discount rate s a market related

2.3.1.1.  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1ce sheet date for an instrument with similar terms and conditions.

rivatives that are not exchange-traded is estimated at the amount that the Bank would recaive or pay to terminate the contract at the balance

This categary has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset ish into account current markst conditions and the curent creditworthiness of the countst-partos.

in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of short-term profit taking or if so designated by management. Derlvatives are also categorised as helg|
trading unless they are designated as hedges.

and losses on subsequent measurement
2.3.1.2, Loans and receivables

rising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit ar loss category are included In the income statement in
Y arise. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assels are recognised directly in equity, until the

Loans and receivahles are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinabla payments that are not quoted In an active merket. They can be originate gnised or impaired at which time the cumulative gain of loss previously recognised in equlty is recogrised in proiit or lose.

acquired by the bank with no intention of trading the receivable and comprise loans and advances to banks and customers other than bonds purchased at 1
issuance.

2.3.1.3  Avajlable-for-sale

> cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of acquisition,

d, non-restricted cash deposited with the Central Bank of Oman, amounts due from other banks and eligible treasury bills and certificate of
Available-for-sale investments are those intendsd to be held for an indefinite period of fime, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or cha 10

Interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

232 Recognifion and derecognition

._ I & term longer than three months are classified separaiely as assets available-for-sale,
The Bank recognises financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale assets on the trade date, the date it commits to purchase 0!

the asset. From this date any gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of the assets are recognised. Loans and recelvables, deposits and subordin
liabilities are recognised on the date they are originated.

: lities are offset and the net amount is reported In the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to et off the recognised

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Bank has transferred substantial§Rmou i intention to settle on a et basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

risks and rewards of ownership. A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished.

ment of financial assets

233 Measurement

eﬂeh balance sheet date whather there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or
ets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
_ m'ﬁﬂl fecognition of the asset (a 'loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the sstimated future cash flows of the financial

assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assels is impaired includes observable data
ion of the Bank about the following loss events:

Financial assets are measurad iritially at fair value, plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss,

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and all available-for-sale assets are measured at fair value, except &l

nstrument that does not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured is stated at cost, including transad
costs, less impairment osses.

f;sig.n'fffc'ant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;
a breach of contract, such as a default or delinguency In intersst or principal payments;

1_!].6. Bank granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relating to the barrowsr's financial difficulty, a concession that the lender
Would not otherwise consider:

All non-trading financial liabilities and loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost less Impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated on the effet

interest rate method. Premiums and discounts, including initial transaction costs, are included In the carrying amount of the refated instrument and amartised b
an the effective interest rate of the instrument,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 (continued)

2. Principal accounting policies (continued)

" Principal accounting policies (continued)

| ‘ 27 Impairment of financial assets (continued) . . . .
| Impairment of financial assets (continued)

{iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptoy or other financial reorganisation;
) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

{vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial asssts since
initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the group, Inclu |

— adverse changes in the payment status of barrowers in the group; or
—national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets In the group.

' period, the amourtt of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related onjectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
' ) as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss Is reversed by adjusting the allowance account, The
reversal is recognised in the income statement,

each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets, ather than investments at
1 profit and loss, Is Impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
low Its cost Is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
easired as the difference between the acguisition cost and the current fair valug, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
or loss — is removed from equily and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity
rsed through the income statement. If, in & subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases
e objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised In profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists Individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectifiies
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Bank determines that no objective evidence of Impairment exists for an individually assessed finang
asset, whether significant or nat, it includes the asset In a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses the i
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impalrment, and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not incluced in a colledie
assessment of impairment.

If there s objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and recaivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measureq
‘ the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been Inc
| discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance accourt and|
‘ amount of the loss Is recognised in the income statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss Is the cur
|

effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expadient, the Bank may maasure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value U
i an observable market price.

er than freehold land and capital work-in-progress, by equal Instalments over their estimated economic useful lives from the date the

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from \‘urec:rosuna;T
costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

Years
7-25
3
35

4

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Ba
grading process that considers asset type, Industry, geographical location, callateral type, past-due status and other relevant factors), Those characteris
relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors' ability to pay all amounts due according to the contrac
terms of the assels heing evaluated.

s and useful Iives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, at each halance sheet date, An asset's carrying amount is written down

overble amount I the asse's camying amount s greater than Its estimated recovarable amount, The fecoverabl amount s the higher of the
s fo sell and value in use.

Future cash flows in & group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the asd
‘ ' in the Bank and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the Group, Historical loss experience is adjusted on the i
‘ , | of current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss experience is basad and ta rem

(AR the effects of conditions in the historical perlod that do not exist currently. i

osal of prapsrty and equipment are determined by refersnce to their carrying amount and are taken Into account in determining operating
/dls are charged to the income statement when the expense is incurred. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only whan it increases the
mbodied in the item of property and equipment. All other expenditure is recognised in the Income statement as an expense as Incurred.

‘ ‘ Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in related observable data from pel
- to period {for example, changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment status, or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of losses in!

group and their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Bank to reduce any differert
| between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

1e assets

When a loan is known to be uncollectible, all the necessary legal procedures have been completed, and the final loss has been determined, the loan is written
against the related provision for loan impalrment. Such luans are written off after all the necessary pracedures have been completed and the amount of the loss
been determined, Subsequent recoveriss of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of the provision for loan impairment in the income statement.

4 085 of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acguired at the date of acquisttion. Goodwill is tested
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 (continued)

i1 2. Principal accounting policies (continued) incipal accounting policies (continued)

i 2.10.  Provisions jon (continued)

i A provision is recognised in the balance shest when the Bank has a legal or conslructive obligation as a result of
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated, If the

discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
to the liability,

a past event, and it is probable that an ol
effect Is material, provisions are determi
monsy and, where appropriate, the risks gp .

provided In full, using the halance sheet liability method, on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets arid liabilitias for
s and the amounts used for taxation burpnses (the tax base). The amaunt of deferred tax provided is hased an the expected manner of

“the carrying amount of assats and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet dale. The principal
Ise from depreciation of property and equipment and provisions.

2.11. Dividends

cognised only o the extent that It is probable that future taxable profits will be avallable against which the as

set can be utilised. Deferred
ced to the extent that it Is no longer probabls that the related tax benefit will be realisad.

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the year in which they are declared,

212 Interest income and expense

- accrued in accordance with the terms of employment of the bank'

abour Law, Employee entitiements to annual Isave and leave passage are recognised when they acerue to emplayess and an accrual is
ibility arising as a result of services rendsrod by employees up to the balance sheet date,

s employees at the balance sheet date, having regard to the
Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement using the effective interest method,

(1 | The effective interest methad is a method of calculating the amortised cost of & financial asset or 2 financial liability and of allocating the interest income or inte

| expense over the relevant period. The effective intersst rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futy
of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the nat carrying amount of the financlal asset or financial liability, When calculating the e
interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not congi

future credit losses. The caloulation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interes_-'
I Iransaction costs and all other premiums or discounts,

ntribution retirement plan and occupational hazard insurance for Omani employess in accordance with the Omani Social Insurances
ent amendments are recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred,

 financial instruments

onised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract Is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value, Fair
i qLiDte:d market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation techniques, including discaunted cash flow
odels, as appropriate. Al derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative,

Once a financial assst or a group of similar financial assats has been written down as aresult of an impairment loss, interest income I recognised using the ral
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment [oss,

o value of a derivative at initial reco nition is the transaction price
2.13. Fees and commission income el it

tis e_u[dehced by comparison with other observable current marke
aluation technigue whose variables include only data from obse

8., the fair value of the consideration given or received) unlsss Ihe
t transactions in the same instrument (T.e. without modification or

: rvable markets. When such evidence exists, the Bank recognises profits
Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided, Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely {2

drawn down are deferrad (together with related direct costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective nterest rate on the loan, Loan syndication feesé

recognised as reveriue when the syndication has been completed and the Bank retained no partof the loan package for itself or retained a part at the same ¢

interest rate for the other participants. Commission and fess arlsing from negotiating, or participating in the negotiation of, a transaction for a third party — s
N the arrangement of the acquisition of shares or other securities or the purchase or sale of businesses —

'.'ul_ﬁh'g fair value gain or loss depends on whether the deri
- Bz_mk- enters into derivative instruments for hed
derivative instrument that does not qualify for h

vative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the
ging purposes, certain derlvative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting.
edye accounting are recognised immediately in the Income statement,

management fees related to investment funds are recagnised ratea
financial planning and custody services that are continuously provided over an extended period of time.

r'epurchase agreements

[ 2.14. Taxation

Incame tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is rec

ognised in the income statement sxcept ta the extant that il rel
fo items recognised directly in equity, in which case It ig recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxahle income for

the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date, and:
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years,

) parties, in which case the purchase and sale are recorded with the
a trading liability,
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2. Principal accounting policies (continued) ative financial instruments (continued)

unts of certain types of financial Instruments provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised on the balance sheat but do not
the amounts of future cash flows invalved or the current fair value of the instruments, and therefore, do not indicate the Bank's exposure o
¢ derivative instruments become favourable {assets) or unfavouraole (liabllities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates or foreign
eir terms, The aggregate confractual or notional amount of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which instruments are
il nd thus the agaregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities shown within other assets and ather liabillties, can fluctuete
ime. The fair values of derivative instruments held are set out below:

2.18.  Borrowings

Borrowingg are recognised initially at falr value, being their issue proceeds (fair value of consideration raceived) net of fransaction costs incurred. Borrowin
| ' subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the redemption value is recognised in the income staten

' over the period of the borrowings using the effective Interest method.

2.19. Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged either in providing products or services (business segment), or in providing product Fair values

services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other SBOmE

' The Bank currently operates only in the Sultanate of Oman. The Bank's primary format for reporting segmental information is business segments, based i
{1 management and internal reporting structure. The Bank's main business segments are corporate and relail banking.

) Contract / notional amount Assets Liabilities
) RO'000 RO'000 RO'000

—w

at fair value through profit or loss
(! 2.20. Directors’ remuneration

Diractors’ remuneration is calculated in accordance with the Commercial Companies Law of Sultanate of Oman.

‘ || 3. Cash and cash equivalents
| 2006 2005 Falr vallieh
| RO'000 RO'000 Contract / notional ilaqnao&znn; F?g‘%ent[s} Lia:tijl‘iit]igg
{ fair value through profit or loss
| Cash on hand 7,321 6,089
'i ! - Balances with the Central Bank of Oman 14,465 22,255
Certificate of deposits 55,000 56,000
Treasury bills 7,653 -
84,439 84,344

At 31 December 2006, cash and cash equivalents included balances with the Central Bank of Oman approximately RO 500,000 (2005 - RO 500,000) as minié
reserve requirsments. These funds are not available for the Bank's daily business.

4. Derivative financial instruments

The Bank uses the following derivative instruments for both hedging and non-hedging purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase foreign and domestic currency, including undelivered spot transaciions. Currency swaps are commitmé
to exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result In an economic exchange of currencles. No exchange of principal takes place, except for certain cu -‘-:-!
swaps. The Bank's credit risk represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts, If counterparties fail to perform thelr obligation. This risk is monitored
an ongoing basis with reference to the current fair value, a propartion of the national amount of the contracts and the liquidity of the market. To control the &Y8
cradit risk aken, the Bank assesses counterparties using the same techniques as for ifs lending activities.

nt with two local bank's individually represented 20% or more of the Bank's placements.
sment with any individual bank represented 20% or more of the Bank's placements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 (continued)

6. Loans and advances to customers

Overdrafts

Loans

[.oans against trust receipts
Bills discounted

Advance against credit cards
Others

Gross loans and advances
Less; Impairment allowance

Net loans and advances

The movement in the impairment allowance is analysed below:
(a) Allowance for loan impairment
1 January
Alowance made during the year
Released to the income statemant during the year
Written off during the year
31 December
(b) Reserved interest
1 January
Reserved during the year
Released to the income statement during the year
Written-off during the year
31 Decemboer
Total impairment allowance

As a matter of policy, the Bank considers walver / write-off or settlement only in such cases,
liabilities from the borrower is not possible in the normal course of bu

available} and that legal action will not yisld higher recoveries after consi

Praposals for waivers / write-off are not formula driven and are decided on
documented. In all cases, the Bank aims 1o recover the maximum value through en

Interest is reserved by the Bank against loans and advances which are impaired, to

Oman.

;c-"l"--: <
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siness or out of the securi
dering the time and costs involved.
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nd advances to customers (continued)

2006
RO'000 Oman’s guidelines far provision against classified loans and advances, at 41 December 2006, out of the fotal provisions of approximately
RO 44,364,000) provision made on & general portfolio basis for similar asgets amounts to approximately RO 7,516,000 {2005 -
75,278 |
471,091 palred loans and advances on which interest has been reserved amount to approximately RO 35,285,000 (2005 - RO 33,651,000) and
33,401 \which interest is not being accrued amount ta approximately RO 6,338,000 (2005 - RO 5,924,000).
1,482 - L )
FES ot jal instruments at fair value through profit or loss
0,307 ' Fair value Farvalue  Carryingamount  Carrying amount
2006 2005 2006 2005
594,716 ; ]
RO’000 RO'000 RO'000 RO'000
(45,897)
548,819 9,098 13,390 9,098 13,398
2006 2005
30106 RO'000 RO'000
2,646
(3512) 7,277 7,326
3,593 84
(©5) 93 3,844
20170 10,870 11,170
14,258 | .Pc.‘[_a_r:k_etvalue. Carrying amount
- Cost 2006 2005 2006 2005
3,406 3,10 _ T RO'000 R0O'000 RO'000 R0’000 RO'000
(476) irities Market (by sector)
@61) Zi:; 2,958 2,176 2,958 2,176
727 1,097 727 &
16,727 iy .
2,121 2,242 3,165 2,242 3165
45,897 1,198 1,432 1,018 1,350 888
6,305 7,359 7,456 7,217 7,326

where the Bank is satisfled that the recovery of the full out A
ties realisation or through enforcement of the guarantee (whel

case by case basls after weighing all pros and cons. The rationale s invaf
forcement of collaterals / guarantees of guarantors, etc.

comply with the rules, regulations and guidelines issued by the Central Bal

2,405 2,639
1,188 1,205
3,593 3,844
10,870 11,170

stments are carried at their fair value. The market value in certain cases is higher than the carrying amount. However, the Board of
n—l;:qqidity of certain shares, the market value of the quoted securities is not representative of the fair value and hence appropriate
market value to reflect the falr value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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s L

9. Intangible assets

2006
RO’000

Goodwill
1 January 3,971
Impairment charge for the year e
31 December 3,97

] Bliric Bank entered into a mid-term syndicated loan agreement for US $ 100,000,000 with three vears maturfty. The lead arrangers for the loan were
10. Property and equipment s Jassertein and ING Bank. This was the second loan, the Bank raised from the international market bringing the total international borrowing to
Capital 5175,C S$150,000,000). The rates of interest are linked to three month LIBOR subject to competitive margin,
Furniture Motor Computer :

Buildings : A Work-in- _
RO’000 .angéi:l‘]t&ges ‘%}gﬁ e'ﬁgﬂ%ﬁm progress 1 Deg borrowing from a bank individually represented 20% or more of the Bank's borrowings (2005 - Nil). The Bank has not had any defauits

RO'000 rincing eI breaches during the year on its borrowed funds (2005 - NII).

Freehold
Land
RO'000
Cost
1 January 2005 140 1,653 3,692 687 4.583 122 T frnm customers
Additions - : 559 222 597 95 , ' i T
Disposals - - (112) (148) (61) - 1) RO'000 R0'000
1 January 2006 4,039 761 5119 Lrrent acco 123,234 119,562
Additions 729 131 768 ViR 86,550 67,674
Disposals : (230) (132) (78) " 285,706 263,234

31 December 2006 4,538 760 5,800 1,652 1,662
- 497,142 452,132
Depreciation |

1 January 2005 i 2,695 420 3,655 - : 0oL deposis include deposits from the Government of the Sultanate of Oman amaunting to RO 108,821,000 (2005 - RO 108,000,000,
Charge for the year 409 129 453 . |

Disposals / written-off (83) (133) (58) - th ﬁﬁb"mes

1 January 2006 3.021 416 4,052 ! ' _

Charge for the year 379 151 538 1,1 RUz'ggg
Disposals / written-off - (212) (114) (77) ' 3,711
31 December 2006 e | 3,188 453 741 ' 13,161
Carrying amount ! ' 369
31 December 2006 40 - 1,350 307 ; 1,606

31 December 2005 . 32
Ives (note 4) 19

11. Other assets | 2;17

2006 d 19,266
R0'000

Interest receivable 1,851

Prepaid expenses 658

Dividends receivable 352

Positive fair value of derivatives (note 4) 81

Collateral acquired against detits - Gogr NGome statement
Other recelvables / 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 (continued)

15. Subordinated bonds

Pursuant to a ‘merger agreement’ between the Bank and Majan International Bank SADC (MIB) dated 28 December 2002, on 31 March 2003, the Bank i
7,361,767 subordinated bonds of RO 1 each with a tenure of 5 years and 1 day 1o the former shareholders of MIB. These bonds carry a coupon rate of 7%
annum payable annually. The bonds are listed at Muscat Securlties Market.

16. Share capital
alue

sment on sale of available for sale investment

The authorised share capital consists of 1,000,000,000 shares of RO 0.100 each (2005 — 50,000,000 shares of RO 1.000 each). At31 December 2
Issued and pald up share capital comprise 461,579,998 shares of RO 0.100 each. (2005 — 41,961,818 shares of RO 1.000 each)

_ r share (basic and diluted)
On 22 March 2006, the Shareholders of the Bank in their Extraordinary General Meeting and Annual crdinary General Meeting, approved the increase g
authorised capital of the Bank from RO 50,000,000 to RO 100,000,000 and to split the par value of the share from RO 1.000 per share to RO 0.100 per shar 0 ted earnings per share is hased on profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders as follows:

a result the authorized capital of the Bank increased to 1,000,000,000 s_)hares of RO 0100 each. 2006 o005
20,130,000 14,199,000
Also the shareholders approved to issug 10% bonus shares. This brought the paid up capital to 461,579,998 shares of RO 0.100 each. ' d aves shares outstanding during the year 452,267,923 418,618,180
: ' 0.045 0.034
Shareholders
The following shareholders of the Bank own 10% or more of the Bank's shares, in their own name or through a nominee account: . Uity ; assats, as formulatsd by the Basle Comnittee, for the year endsd 31 Dacember 2006 is 16.4% (2005 - 15.3%),
2006 2005
No of shares Y No of shares ¢

Dhofar International Development and Investment Gompany SACG 138,773,997 30% 12,588,546 0 2006 2005
Civil Service Employees” Pension Fund 46,157,991 10% 4,196,181 ( RO'000 RO'000
38,295 32,830
17. Reserves 1,931 944
1,946 906
115 58
(a) Legal reserve mf,ggg i 42,287 34,738
Appropriation for the year 2013 (3,620) {1,776)
31 December 97870 r (16:042) {T &342}

26,245 24,396

In accordance with Article 106 of the Commercial Companles Law of 1974, annual appropriations of 10% of profit are made to the legal reserve U "
accumulated balance of the reserve is equal to one-third of the Bank's paid up share capital. This reserve Is not avallable for distribution.

(b) Subordinated bond reserve

The Bank transfers an amount equivalent to 20% of the value of the subordinated bonds each year to the subordinated bond reserve until the bonds maturés

Ove are net of fees and commissions paid of RO 447,000 (2005 - RO 328,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 (continued)

22. Staff and administrative costs

ancial assets

2006 2005
(@) Staff costs RO’000 RO'000
2006 t fair value through profit or loss 43
158 18
Salaries and allowances 6,521 2,847 2,799
Other personnel costs 589 (3’5_.17) 120
(670) 679
Scheme costs (Note (b)) 286
Non-Omani employees terminal benefit (Note {c)) 79
7,475 2006 2005
R0’000 RO'000
Administrative costs
2,194 1,255
Advertising and promotion 1,699 “ 44) 91
Occupancy costs 1,006 1,7'5_ﬁ 1,346
Impairment of intangible assets r
Dala processing 601 96 677
Faes and subscriptions 354 _ )
- " 96 586
Correspondent charges : 1,846 103
Communication costs ; 238 @ year 2006 in accordance wilh the income tax laws of the Sultanate of Oman at the rate of 12% on taxable profits in excess
Printing and stationery 191 llation of income taxes calculated at the applicable tax rate with the income tax eXpense:
Professional charges 252
Insurance 90 2006 2005
Wi '
Others 529 ROS0 RO00
21,976 16,131
4,906 ove mentioned 2,634 1,932
AL 31 December 2006, the Bank had 636 employees (2005 - 598), (444) o1
13 )

(b) Oman Social Insurance Scheme (the Scheme)

1,846 1,932

The Bank contributes to the Scheme for all Omani employees. The Scheme, which is a defined contributions retirement plan, Is administered by the Governimé

Oman. The Bank and Omani employees are required to make manthly contributions to the Scheme based on fived percentages of basic salaries. 9005

RO'000

(c) Non-Omani employee terminal benefits
(32)

(32)

The provision for end of service benefits for non-Omani employees is made in accordance with the requirements of the Omani Labour Law. Employees are el
to benefits based on length of service and final remuneration. Accrued staff terminal benefits are payable on termination of employment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 (continued)

o e ,’-.

24. Income tax (continued)

(c) Status of the tax assessments

The Bank's tax assessments for the years 2003 to 2005 have not yet been finalised with the Department of Taxation Affairs at the Ministry of Finance, The Boay
Directors believe that additional taxes, If any, in respect of open tax assessments would not be material to the Bank's results and financial position.

25. Transactions with related parties and holders of 10% or more of the Bank’s shares

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank conducts fransactions with certain of its Directors, shareholders and companies over which they are able to g
significant influence. The aggregate amount of balances with such related parties are as follows:

Loans and advances
Directors and sharehelders holding less than 10% interest in the Bank

Directors and sharsholders holding 10% or more interest in the Bank

Deposits and other accounts
Directors and sharehalders holding less than 10% interest in the Bank

Directors and shareholders holding 10% or more Interest In the Bank

Contingent liabilities and commitments
Directors and sharsholders holding less than 10% interest In the Bank

Directors and sharsholders holding 10% or more interest in the Bank

Remuneration paid to Directors
Chairman

— remuneration proposed
— sitting fees paid

Otner Directors

— remuneration proposed
— sitting fees paid

Other transactions

Sale of property acquired against debt

Loan written-off (Guaranteed by related parties)
Rental payment to a related party

Other transactions

Key management compensation

Salaries and other short-term benefits

Other related costs — performance bonus

Dues written off

T e A e Annual
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NCIAL STATEMENTS
ED 31 DECEMBER 2006 (continued)

er and senior members

2006
RO'000
21,990
875
6,574
28,564
11 21
60,373 ;
16403  the Central Bank of Oman for Single Borrower and Senior Members are secured by cash collaterals, pledge of Government
: k participation arrangements with other commercial banks.
75476 1
806 iabilities and commitments
69
875 d contingent items
her commitments for which there are corresponding customer liabilifies:
2006 2006 2005
RO’000 RO’000 RO'000
33,520 25,611
15,400 18,045
9 27,711 05,941
1 20,428 18,763
12,824 13,814
94 2,236 3314
23{7) 112,119 105,488
of eredit, guarantees and other commitments amounting to RO 8,844,000 (2005 - RO 9,784,000 are counter guaranteed by other
4; estment commitments
20 2006 2005
_ RO’000 RO'000
property and equipment 855 68
634
251 1gent liabilities and commitments
134 lies or commitments which have crystallised after the balance shest date nor are there any acknowledged material claims against
1,019
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31 December 2006
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Available-for-sale investments
Intangible assets
Property and equipment

! Other assefs

 Total assets
Due to banks
Deposits from customers
Other llabilities
Subordinate bonds
Shareholders' equity

Total iabilties and shareholders' equity

31 December 2005

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and advances to banks

|.oans and advances to customers
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Available-for-sale investment

[ntangible assets

Property and equipment

Other asseis

Total assets

Due to banks

Deposits from customers

QOther liabilities

Subordinate bonds

Shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Maturity profile of assets and liabilities

Analysis of significant assets and liabilities

Due on 2monthsto 7 monthsto  More than
. demand and | 12 months 1 year to
up to 30 days 5 years
| RO'000 RO'000 RO’000
80,113 - @
22,844 - -
95,703 39,830 242,387
1,282 5,520 2,296
- 8,683 -
997 179 15 61
200,939 87,545 54,048 244,744
3,366 - - 67,513
112,801 138,597 105,701 87,549
10,768 6,770 3,037 4,404
- - - 7,362
- 6,924 - -
126935 152291 108738 166,828
Due on 2 monthsto 7 months to More than
demand and 6 months 12 months 1 year to
up to 30 days 5 years
RO°000 RO'000 RO’000
83,844 - - -
20,821 1,155 = 3,850
64,924 57,237 31,316 238,094
- 4,215 6,879
- - 10,119 -
328 21 4 144
169,917 58,413 45,654 248,967
2172 s - 57,888
103,228 135,285 92,702 74,076
7,405 4,250 3,171 3,475
- - - 7,362
- 4,196 - -
112,805 143,731 95,873 142,801
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: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DED 31 DECEMBER 2006 (continued) |

ysis of significant assets and liabilities (continued)

ensitivity gap

arises from mismatches in the period to repricing of assets and that of the corresponding liability funding. The Bank manages thase
guii:le.llnes and reduces risk by matching the repricing of assets and liabilities through varlous means including monitoring by the
ificant changes in gap positions can be made to adjust the profile as market nutinoks change.

= Eifocive | Dueon | D | Due | mus | pu | None | ol
- average  demand within within within ~ after  bearing
| itorest | andwitin 108 | 7tz | 115 | Syers | inerest |

. rate%  30days months |~ months years [
' RO'000  R0'000 ~ RO'000  RO'000 RO'000  RO'000  RO'000 i

3.7 58,326 3,826 - - 500 21,787 84,439 ’l

49 22,844 1,925 4,620 - - - 29,389 |

3 7.8 162,626 69,466 42,648 217,009 52,481 4,389 548,819 ]

gh profit or loss 43 1,282 - 5,520 2,296 - - 9,098 |
' = - - 2,187 - 8,683 10,870
i, 5 2 z - 3,971 3,971

- - - - E 4,152 4,152 |

- - - - - 4,061 4,061 |

245278 75217 52,788 221,492 52,981 47,043 694,799 ‘

] 5.4 2937 67,513 : : ¢ 429 70879 |
06 149664 86811 72399 44,275 48 143945 497,142 '

ki 7.0 5 - - . - 26435 26135 |
: , - 7382 . - 7362 *

- - . - - 93281 93,7281 i

152601 154324 _ 72399 _ 51637 48 263790 694,799

_ 92677 (19107) (19611) 169,855 52,933 (216,747)
e | 92677 13570 _ (6,041) 163814 24| - |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 (continued)
28. Analysis of significant assets and liabilities (continued)

(b) Interest sensitivity gap (continued)

31 December 2005
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customers
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Available-for-sale Investment
Intangible assets

Property and equipment
Other assets

Total assets

Due to banks

Deposits from customers
Other liahilities
Subordinate bonds
Shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

On-balance sheet gap

Cumulative interest sensitivity gap

Effective

average

interest
rate

%

34
7.5
4.5

3.6

1.9

7.0

Due on Due Due Due Non-
demand within within after bearing
and 1106 7to12 5 years interest
within30  months months
days
RO’000 RO’000 RO'000 RO'000 RO'000
67,550 - - 500 16,294
20,821 1,155 3,850 = “
119,456 50,973 35,064 45,134 4,988
- - 4,215
- - - - 10,119
- - - - 3,97
- - - - 3,847
- - - - 4,732
207,827 52,128 43,129 45,634 43,951
1,697 28,875 29,013 - 475
142,532 86,672 62,025 32 120,633
J - - = 19,266
= - - - 79,405
144,229 115,547 91,038 32 219,779
63,508  (63,419)  (47,909) 45,602 175,828
63,598 179 (47,730) 175,828 -

ical concentrations

Assets

Gross
loans and
advances

RO'000

590,385
4,331

Investment
securities

RO'000

18,780

1,188

Deposits
from
customers
RO'000

492,753
4,389

19,968

497,142

;

Liabilities
Deposits Contingent
from liabilities
banks |
RO’000 RO'000

1,768 59,310
4,892 30,804
60,754 7,190
3,465 14,815

_ 70879 112,119

508,430
6,871

23,361

1,207

515,301

24,568

448,937
3,195

96,502
28,178

6,876
13,932

4521 32

105,488

Assels
Gross
loans and
advances
RO'000

229,611
321,288
43,817

10,870
9,098

594,716

19968

Depasits
from
customers

169,851
218,470
108,821

Liabilities

Deposits Contingent
from liabilities
hanks 5
R0'000 RO’000

524
111,036
559

497,142

112,119

207,259
287,580
20,462

515,301

11,170
13,398

135,955
213,177
103,000

393
104,544
651

24,568

452,132

105,488
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 (continued)
28. Analysis of assets and liabilities (continued)
(e) Economic sector concentrations
Assets Liabilities
Gross loans Deposits from
and advances customers
RO’000 RO'000
31 December 2006
Personal 229,611 169,851
International trade 67,026 29,488
Construction 48,777 10,979
Manufacturing 39,349 23,992
Wholesale and retail trade 14,878 2,161
Communication and utilities 28,773 1,956
Financial services 31,146 18,314
Government 43,817 108,821
Other services 41,093 64,370
Others 50,246 67,210
594,716 497,142
31 December 2005
Personal 207,259 135,955
International trade 65,325 20,575
Construction 48,552 9,540
Manufacturing 41,185 22,709
Wholesale and retail trade 15,060 1,428
Communication and utilities 20,979 1,496
Financial services 25,305 31,820
Government 20,462 103,000
Other services 31,353 66,911
Others 39,821 58,700
515,301 452,132
(f Foreign currency exposures
' 2006
RO’000
Net assets denominated in Us Dollars 3,624
Net assels denominated in other foreign currencies 497
4,121
—l,

\
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ANCIAL STATEMENTS
)ED 31 DECEMBER 2006 (continued)

ue information

major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of assels and liabilities:

at cost and derivatives

oted market prices at the balance sheet date without any deduction for transaction costs. If & quoted market price Is not available, fair value
discounted cash flow and other valation techniques.

finiques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on Management's best estimates and the discount rate is a market-related
1t at the balance shest date.

including certificates of deposit, is hased o
=term refationships with tepositors is not taken into account in estimating fair values,

eet financial instruments
| b&l'ance._shaet-ﬁnanclai instruments are considered to approximate their book values,
cial instruments

> Made with respect to credit-related off-balance sheet financial instruments, which include commitments to extend credit, standby [etters
3 the related future income streams materially reflect contractual fees and commissions actually charged at the balance sheet dats for
standing ang maturity,

> dre Valued based on market prices, The market value adjustments in respact of foreign exchange contracts are included in other agsets
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 0 THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DEGEMBER 2006 (continued) HE DED 31 DECEMBER 2006 (continued)
30. Risk Management anagement (continued)
The impartant types of financial risks to which the Bank is exposed are credit risk, liquidity and market risk. The Bank enters into derivative financial instry (; ank's ral nal & posures give rise to foreign currency gains and losses that are recognisad In the income statement, The Bank ensures that its net
such as forward confracts for risk management purposes. Financial risks are actively managed by management to ensure compliance with the Bank's risk fj el ceplable level by buying and selling foreign currencies at spot rates when considered appropriate.

The Bank’s risk limits are assessed reqularly to ensure their appropriateness given the Bank's objectives, strategies and current market conditions.

Credit risk

_ . . bject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that interest-eaming assets and interesi-bearing liabilities mature at different
The most important risk to which the Bank is exposed is cradit risk. The Bank is subject to credit risk through its trading, lending and investing activities and oL nis. In case of floating interest rate assets and liabilities the Bank is also exposed to basis risk, which is the difference in repricing
wihere it acts as an Intermediary on behalf of customers or other third parties or issues guarantees. The risk thal counter-parties to financial instruments floating rate Indices, such as savings rate and different types of Interest
default on their obligations is monitored on an ongoing basis. To manage the level of credit risk, the Bank deals with counter-parties of good credil stand[n i ' '
when appropriate, obtains collateral. a ivities are aimed at optimising net interest income, given market interest rate levels, consistent with the Bank's business strategies. The Bank

The Bank’s primary exposure to credit risk arises through its loans and advances. The amount of credit exposure in this regard is represented by the cag 1 uuioslinas and raduoss isk by matching the repricing of assats and liabililes trouch vaious means Including montoring

amounts of the assets on the balance sheet, The Bank is exposed to credit risk on various other financial assets; the current credit exposure in respect of AsSE mittee, Significant changes can be made in gap positions to adjust the profile as market outiooks change.
instruments is equal to the carrying amount of these assels in the balance sheet. Bl i
ntal information

The Bank guarantees the performance of customers by issuing standby letters of credit and guarantees to third parties. The risk Involved is essentially the sanl
the credit risk involved In extending loan facilities to customers, therefore these transactions are subjected to the same cradit organisation, portfolio mainten ANk IS organised into two main business segments:
and collateral requirements for customers applying for loans, While there is some eredit risk associated with the remainder of commitments, he risk is vi
modest, since it results from the possibility of unused portions of the facilities being drawn by the customers, As the facilities may expire without being drawn i : ~noarporating, private customer current accounts, savings, deposits, investment savings products, custody, credit and debit cards, consumer
the notional amounts do not necessarily reflect future cash requirements. '

The credit risk of thesa facilities may be less than the notional amounts, but as It cannot be accurately determined, the credit risk has been laken to be the ca |
i bl AN rate b ncorporating direct debit facilities, current accounts, deposits, overdrafts, loan and other credit facilities, foreign currency and derivative products;

Concentrations of credit risk (whether on or off balance sheet) that arse from financial instruments exist for groups of counter-parties when they have si
economic characteristics that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions.

':ﬁége-lnvashnent management and institutional finance neither of which constitutes a separately reportable segment.

The Bank’s pelicy is to require suitable collateral to be provided by csrtain customers prior to the disbursement of approved loans, Guarantees and letters
are also subject to strict credit assessments befare being provided. The agreements specify monetary limits to the Bank's obligations, Credit card commitme i erating income. Interest charged for these funds |s based on the Bank's cost of capital, There are no other material items of income or
unsecured. Periodic reviews of cardholders’ creditworthiness are made and card limils are adjusted where necessary. perse be iness segments.

Collateral for loans, guarantees, and letters of credit is usually in the form of cash, inventory, listed investments, or other property.
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises in the general funding of the Bank’s activities and in the management of positicns. It includes both the risk of being unable to fund as '

appropriate maturities and rates and the risk of being unable to liquidate an asset at  reasonable price and in an appropriate time frame, Hes toa business segment on a reasonable basis.

, .5 - Retail Corporate Treasury and
The Bank has access to a diverse funding base. Funds are raised using a range of instruments including deposits, other liabilities and assigned capitah banking banking Investments Total
enhances funding flexibility, limits dependence on any one source of funds and generally lowers the cost of funds. The Bank strives ta maintain a halance ¥ R0'000 RO’'000 RO'000 RO'000
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of lizbilities with a range of maturities. The Bank continually assesses liquidity risk by identifying and monié '

changes in funding required to meet business goals and targets set in terms of the overall strategy. In addition the Bank holds certain liquid asssts as pafl i3 19,507 18,788 3,992 42,287
liquidity risk management strategy. I 19,073 11,172 4,675 34,920
Market risk ' d N 229,611 365,105 112,010 706,726
Market risk includes curreney risk and interest rate risk. £ 660,829
Currency risk MRSEE

_ . ' 694,799
The Bank is exposed to currency risk through Its transactions in foreign currencies. The major foreign currency to which the Bank is exposed is the US ; | il 169.851 568.021

the currency in which the Bank presents its financial statements is Rial Omani, the Bank's financlal statements are affocted by movements in the exchan
between these currencies and the Rial Omani, The Bank finances a significant portion of its financial assets in the same currencies as the relevant measuré!

currencies to mitigate its foreign currency risk,

33,497
601,518
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 (continued) () Y+ et ¥ 2 2460000 Al
31. Segmental information (continued) ' ) ) o
Retail Corporate Treasury and o] Al dSla Oifgal ded polasasl ()
At 31 December 2005 banking banking Investments Total
RO’000 RO'000 RO’000 RO’000 iy I o g5 gins 399 ) atslat) Aagall 2 Jolao of (6 page mbised] cilia (sSs Lanie cutadi) _,:.;Wiq el et B ol kit suimy
; " | sLimilyy - gl s B ol il ol Jalse o Lagd ¢ et 5031 2 gl 13 sy ey T paaz by Jglas of
Interest revenues 18,631 14,200 1,907 34,78} il eslanaall 2ol pualls plaslly Jeall om0 s eiunall 2L A1 2 g3 53 (e Jals 108 0095 Lo {L59he Beally kil
Segment result 18,231 9,840 1,909 29,9 Adigaitls
Segment assets 207,259 308,042 106,394 621,
Less; Impalrment allowance {;;1 b ol J:&, CL-’ Ji Slaaied - Y
?l
Unallocated assets 40 . 1mt;aLniJ\e;QHh1,%UJ1WJm:\o:f.wae.x.asclgjmuu_;,:v--vﬁtﬁam-t_utw_a;uiuwt:s,s_,uglo@cfat
61 ! .L-mjﬁi,Y"Ta-o)deﬂM\--%NHMWR,YLAJMME‘:AW'iﬁmb .(QL,;JQJWL,Y—YHQ) Yool

Total assels

Segment liabilities 135,955

Unallocated liabilities . P

e 538, o3 L (3 IQULJ&;..\.].“:QL»‘_,J!(‘:.,JLijleJY,TRE.—YHO]‘:,.';Lacd'l_':_)"l",\fw umu;;am‘}_aafmauﬂ;,s{py;rsrmdm
— _ oles Wilalews S Bgaad Aalall Hisgll (5 350kl

316,177 60,080 512, il Aalall unemtl plain] B crrenbiad] M JUUT uly 2 3l g clayisall e I e

32. Use of estimates -
AT SBLd) e Aadigl)  -TE

(a) Jmpairment losses on loans and advances
The Bank reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at least on a guarterly bagis. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded In the i -_

: ; : . ! ) , : LYVl s YA Rk A il baslieas) Zalglly VA EP Py el hE P
statement, management makes judgemerts as o whether there is any observable data indicating fhat there Is a measurable decrease in the pstimated s YA sty s g0l ugelalingy Lasliue) oA Azlglly 5,13Y! pulne 8 04 e
cash flows from a portfalio of loans and advances before the decrease can be identified with an individual receivable in that portfolio. This evidence may i

observable data indicating that there hias been an adverse change In the payment status of borrowers In a group that correlate with defaults on assets in i = ey .
Management uses estimates based on historical lose experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar ) L&t i‘ﬁ.}‘ -ye
in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodalogy and assumptions usad for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flov

Al Akl UL (o e g i) 25, LAN 5] ey apis Bale] o3 il

reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

(b) Impairment of available-for-sale equity instruments
The Bank defermines that available-for-sale ecuity investrments are impaired when there has Deen a significant or prolonged decline in the falr value
cost. This determination of what i3 significant or prolonged requires judgement. In making this judgement, management ovaluates amang other factors, the.
volatility in share price. In addition, Impairment may be appropriate when there Is evidence of a deterioration in the financial health of the investee, Indusi)

sector performance, changes in tachnology and operational and financing cash flows.

33. Proposed dividend

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 28 Fedruary 2007 proposed @ cash dividend of 15% for the year ended 31 December 2006 amounting to 'f_"
million (2005 - RO 4.2 million] and 15% honus share Issue of 69.2 million shares of 100 Baisa gach (2005 — 4.2 million shares of RO 1 each). A resolutl

approve these dividends and the increase in share capital will be presented to the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.
|

During the year, unclaimed dividend amounting 1o RO 2,717 {2005- RO 2,394) was transterred to the Investor's Trust Fund account as per the guidelines isst
the Capital Market Autharity of Oman.

34. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for Issue on 28 February 2007.
35. Comparative figures

Certain amounts for the prior year have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation,
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